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CHAIR HOKAMA: . . . (gavel). . . Council's Committee on Budget and Finance shall come to
order. This morning we have Committee Members, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excused are Misters White and Guzman. We have a long agenda today,
Members. So we will do the best we can to accomplish as much or all of it by the time
allotted. We shall take testimony at this time on any item agendized. The public has
three minutes and three minutes only by our Committee rules to speak on any item.
There is no requests for additional minutes. The Chair will not grant additional time.
You have three minutes and three minutes only. We shall assist you with the lighting.
Green means speak, yellow means you got 30 seconds, and red means stop and if you
don't I will make you stop. Okay. We've got a lot of work to do today, Members. So
saying that please when your name is called come forward, introduce yourself, if you
are representing an organization or a group we ask that you would please consider
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making that public information. And with that we'll ask Mr. Dan Clark if he would
please come down and give us his thoughts on the item of interest. And following
Mr. Clark will be Napua Hueu.

• .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. CLARK: And good morning, Chairman Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Mr. Clark.
MR. CLARK: --and Councilmembers. My name is Dan Clark. I'm a resident of Keanae,
Maui. I come here today to speak on item 38-11, the road improvements for the
access road to Keanae. First off I want to thank all of you for working with all of us on
this very necessary corrective work. Thank you very much. There, I listened to the
dialogue in the last meeting, you know, concerning the legalities and the
responsibilities of the different portions of the project and I'd like to focus on the road
improvement upgrade in its own. And according to the Hueu family who's lived there
for many, many years, she has said that no work, corrective work has been done on
that road for over 40 years outside of the patchwork and the revetment barriers that
are placed on the outside to keep the people from going over the edge. The funding is
very necessary to do the first leg of the work which is the design and permitting of the
project and without that we can't move forward with the corrective work. And I spent
over 37 years, a civil service employee working these projects and I understand the
intervening concerns with, you know, responsibility, land ownership and this and that
and, you know, worked in upgrading County sewer systems and we were always, you
know, confronted with these issues of who's property was where. But we are able to
move through this, especially if the necessity is as sincere as this one is here. And on
our last meeting I just wanted to, you know, bring to your attention that that evening
a large, you know, slide came down again and covered the entire road. And I'm
constantly telling people who are walking that road to please walk to the outside. It's
very dangerous. So we need to move that roadway out. And we need to concentrate
on its corrective work. So please approve the funds for this necessary project and I
thank you for your continuing support. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Clark. Any questions for the gentleman? Having none,
Mr. Clark, thank you for being here this morning.
MR. CLARK: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair recognizes Mr. White in attendance this morning.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. Napua Hueu, please if you would come down share your
thoughts, and she will be followed by Mike Moran.
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MS. HUEU: Good morning. Thank you for having me. I just wanted to reiterate what
Mr. Clark was...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Could she identify herself please?
MS. HUEU: Napua Hueu. I'm a resident of Keanae.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. HUEU: Thank you. So just reiterating what Mr. Clark had said about the issue, 38(l 1)
and, you know, my grandpa a few years ago had been riding his, you know, farm
equipment down to the lower lands and a hala tree had fallen out of that, you know,
sort of side of the area that Mr. Clark is talking about, and so that's just kind of a
really brief, you know, example of the dangers that, you know, are sort of lurking. If
you look up to the side hill, it's, you know, really sort of apparent the severity of the
situation. So I'd appreciate the attention and the funds to go forth and, you know,
remedy this critical area of the road. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Hueu. Members, any questions for the gentlewoman from
East Maui? Having none, we thank you for being here. Will Mike Moran please come
forward, and following Mr. Moran we will have Ian Aquino.
MR. MORAN: Aloha, Chair Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. MORAN: --and Councilpersons. Mike Moran testifying for the Kihei Community
Association on item BF-38(9). First we express our appreciation to you, Chair, for
scheduling this item this morning. You're likely are aware that we come before the
Council and several of your committees each time a proposed project in our area is
before you expressing our concern of inadequate infrastructure, principally roads.
Regardless of our opinion of the project or its worthiness for our community, each
project adds more motor vehicles. So we ask for reasonable conditions be imposed if
the project is approved to include some way of handling the additional vehicles. We
expect most of us agree if the business does not provide for this the burden falls on
the taxpayer and if sufficient funding cannot be budgeted we're just exacerbating the
problem. For several years KCA has been trying to get an updated transportation plan
for our area as we continuously watch development after development receive County
approval with almost no true traffic mitigation as we only have a 20-year-old plan in
place and we all know how Kihei has exploded over these 20 years. But we have a
current timely matter which really needs to get this updated plan in place. And based
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on advice we received from consultant Rory Frampton as well as our Councilmember
Couch, the first step in achieving this is getting this budget amendment in the current
budget to fund this plan. We have been advised our decades-long request for the
North-South Collector Road at least across North Kihei could potentially be done by
2020 as the missing segments are listed on the STIP. But to help assure Federal
funding based on the planned lane counts we need the proposed Piilani Mauka Road
to at least be shown on some official map which seemingly will happen in this up-todate plan. Thus, we need to continue moving this plan forward before it is too late to
achieve this objective. For immediate, for this immediate concern as well as the
overall need for a current plan of our community we ask for Committee approval. We
all await the upcoming all-consuming 2017 Fiscal Year Budget to clog this Committee
in the spring so we ask the Committee to approve this request as quickly as possible
so the whole house of cards will not collapse. Mahalo for your consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your thoughts, Mr. Moran. Members, questions for the
gentleman from South Maui? Having none, Mr. Moran -MR. MORAN: Mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thank you for your testimony. Next, Mr. Aquino, and following him will
be Debra Greene.
MR. AQUINO: Aloha kakou.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. AQUINO: My name is Ian Aquino. I belong to the Keanae community. At the same
time, I am also the owner of a successful IT company here on Maui and I'm talking
today about Keanae because to be honest I haven't gone there in a while. See, as a
business owner I have a nice car and a nice car needs a nice road to drive on. But I
can't take my car down that road because of the conditions there. Being part of that
community and not being able to go down to our housing property there is kind of sad
unless I can get another vehicle. You know this among other issues as well that were
previously mentioned as far as perhaps expanding the road, taking care of the cliff
issues or the slide issues, you know, that pose a risk to community members as well
as tourists who are abundant when they are going down to the landing. So out of
grave concern for community members, tourists, and visitors who end up going to the
landing I believe it is very, very important that we look into getting the road repaired
and it's very, very critical, and at the same time again as they mentioned, it hasn't
been worked on for maybe the last 40 years. So I think it's about time, you know, we
get some help and support that we would greatly appreciate out there, and it would be
nice to be able to get out there more often for myself. Today I also speak on behalf of
my father, Mark Aquino, who also has similar issues here and there, you know. His
vehicle as well takes quite a beating from attempting to go down that road so now, you
know, again we're looking at different people now having issues and, you know, it's
just an extra challenge, an extra difficulty that we would like to overcome and
hopefully through the means of getting help with repairing the road there. So any help
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we would greatly, greatly appreciate there. The community, you know. would
definitely appreciate it very much. They are some of the nicest people out there
contributing. We have some of our loi farmers out there as well, you know. These
people constantly transporting kalo from their land up and out to town if they're going
to be selling, you know. So these types of things as well to help them get through
there safely so that they can conduct their normal business as well, yeah. We would
really appreciate that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments this morning. Members, any questions for
the gentleman? Having none, we thank you for being here.
MR. AQUINO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Debra Greene,
Junior Nakoa.

if

you would come forward, and following her would be

MS. GREENE: Aloha, honorable Chair, Committee Members, Staff, members of the
community. My name is Debra Greene and I serve as President of the Maui Meadows
Neighborhood Association and I am testifying on behalf of our Association and its
constituency. Thank you, Chair Hokama, for scheduling item BF-38(9). We're here to
urge your support for funding the South Maui Transportation Study. This important
study can help inform decisions about the traffic impacts from planned developments
in Wailea and Makena which will impact traffic on the Piilani Highway. The highway
is already backed up at the two entrances of Maui Meadows during shift changes at
the hotels and those are the only two ways to get in and out of Maui Meadows. So
with the new development projects online the situation is going to get even worse. At
the community budget meeting for Fiscal Year 2017 Rowena Dagdag-Andaya, Deputy
Director of Public Works told me they're waiting for approval of the additional funding
before they can proceed with a contract for the study consultant. After the contract is
awarded the project is expected to take another one and a half to two years to
complete. Timing is of the essence so please approve the additional funding for this
important study before it's too late. We're seeing that key infrastructure like
transportation and drainage is falling further and further behind land use
development. We see our County government not following the goals, objectives, and
policies of the community plan to the detriment of many. According to the
Kihei-Makena Community Plan, the County is supposed to "control the timing and
phasing of construction to ensure systematic and incremental development and to
prevent haphazard development, and ensure that the adequate infrastructure takes
place prior to or concurrent with development." And it seems like that's not being
done. So again time is of the essence. Please approve the additional funding for this
important study. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. Any questions for the gentle lady from
South Maui, Members? Having none, thank you for your testimony.
MS. GREENE: Thank you.
I
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CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll have Mr. Nakoa come forward, and after Mr. Nakoa, Patricia Cadiz.
MR. NAKOA: Howzit, morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. NAKOA: My name is Junior Nakoa from Lahaina. Whoever when make this wanted for
propose this bill for the housing stuff mahalos 'cause we need 'em for the homeless
people. Talking to plenty people in Lahaina, you know, like homeless people, get
plenty kanakas out there. I know you guys get 'em as homeless but they're not
homeless, this is our home. They're just houseless. So let's go figure 'em out, you
know what I mean. I trying all kine angles for get a hold of the Human Concerns lady,
Reimann, Carol whatever. I e-mail everybody. I try for work out for keep Maui people
on Maui. So this homeless thing is one big one too. Couple of 'em is just
Vietnamese [sic] veterans or whatever and we not taking care of 'em. Kind of bumming
you know what I mean, come sad like that. But I see you guys want to make the
funds for 'em for the SpaceMax shelter, I dunno what is that I going look 'em up. But
thank you guys for that. And even get like three more guys for join this thing but I
guess make sure hopefully get somebody in Lahaina for do 'em. I can do 'em. I don't
mind doing 'em. I already talking story to plenty people. You know what I mean with
the hotels and all that. I'm sure they no like 'em down Kaanapali you know what I
mean? So let's go try take care of 'em. Talk to, you know, I guess Peter Martin when
try one time. Let's go talk story with everybody you know what I mean, developers,
realtors, unions. Everybody, I know everybody's saying that but I mean for real. I
going right here beer-30 used to be for drink beer, time for drink beer. But now I
change 'em. It's braddah educating Americans. So I going go out there talk to people
on how we can help each other for get out there instead of just talk when you drinking
beer. Make action, you know what I mean? Three people in the world, okay; people
who like things happen, people who watch things happen, and people who makes
things happen. Okay. We going make things happen. I like thank the County for
giving us this opportunity for help 'em. And let us know, us guys like help. We get
plenty guys who can help. Us guys out there, we coach, we out there in the
community every day. You know what I mean, no scared call us up, brah, 'cause I
called up you guys, you guys got my e-mails you know what I mean, Leonard Nakoa
III. Call me back, brah, talk story 'cause I get plenty people I going talk story, cuz. I
going get ILWU into this action. You know what I mean? We going, the community
going get strong. I tell you we not fooling around now. You know I telling up guys
now put down the beer little while, we go talk story. We'll make this thing happen and
the beer going taste more ono when we start taking care of people. For real. But
mahalo you guys for trying to make this thing happen. Let's make 'em happen. Let's
get the, kick the Governor in his okole little bit too. Okay. Mahalo. And the Mayor,
the Mayor too. But mahalo you guys, good job.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Nakoa for at least giving us a unique West Maui
perspective. So we appreciate that, and thank you for volunteering.
MR. NAKOA: Yeah, we ready, brah.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your good work. Members, any questions for Mr. Nakoa?
Okay. Having none, thank you very much. Would also like to recognize Mr. Guzman's
presence.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Patricia Cadiz, please, it's your turn. And following Ms. Cadiz will be
Joseph Pluta.
MS. CADIZ: Good morning and aloha, Chair Hokama and Members...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you put the, yeah. Thank you.
MS. CADIZ: Sorry, good morning and aloha, Chairman Hokama and Members of the Council
and community. I'm here to support the Mayor's effort to deal with homeless and
that's item number 38(26) and 38(30) I believe. This is a follow-up to a... sorry what's
that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You didn't give me your name.
MS. CADIZ: Oh I'm sorry, Patricia Cadiz.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
MS. CADIZ: Thank you for having me. This is a follow-up to a letter your received
December 511, from Mr. Gary Elster where he talked about the need to close the
campground at Kanaha Beach Park and create more appropriate houseless services to
those that are there, and we've located a property that has actually been, it's been
investigated already by several other members in the community including Ms.
Reimann, Mr. Woodson, Mr. Regan, Roz Baker, and Shane [sic] Tsutsui. It is the
Kahului Armory Building located at 175 South Puunene Avenue. It's about a
12,000-square-foot building. It's vacant at the moment. The only thing in there is a
boat and it has served for some parking for the DLNR's, apparently it's only use at the
moment. It's completely fenced with a security gate. It is conveniently located to the
necessary services that the people that would be housed there would need including
the Salvation Army which is right around the corner and who has expressed interest
and has the ability to manage and run it. They have models in place all over the
mainland so they would know the staffing and the budget it would take and they
stand ready. All they need is funding. We propose that... it's controlled by the State.
We propose that we ask the State to lease it to the County for a dollar a year and ask
the State to provide some of the emergency funding for the homeless situation that
has been talked about by our Governor to the County to do whatever immediate
renovations might be needed to that building. It probably has a kitchen, probably has
bathrooms, maybe showers. The only thing is that there's apparently a, the state of
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emergency thing I think that has a deadline of February 23rd and if we can act before
that deadline then we can use the streamlined process to bypass a lot of otherwise
necessary permitting. So to us this appears to be an almost immediate solution for a
lot of people out there that need shelter, especially during the winter which can be
rainy. And the only thing that's really standing in the way right now is the present
use which is parking for the DLNR and we suggest an alternative to that might be the
improved area near the harbor that was renovated for the Superferry and now has
alternate use.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cadiz, you have a second item you wanted to share your
thoughts with us?
MS. CADIZ: Well it's kind of all, both of those are regarding shelter for homeless and I
support the Mayor's efforts in everything he's doing, and this suggestion is just
tangent to that, not to replace anything he's doing, just to supplement a maybe more
immediate solution. I think what I'm maybe asking, Council, is if, I don't know if it's
possible to pass a resolution asking the Governor to put this on the list or if you could
even just make phone calls to Shane Tsutsui and let him know that you're interested
in that solution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It's Shan.
MS. CADIZ: Shan, thank you, and anything you can do to speed it along because if we can
get it online before that deadline's up then it bypasses so many other permitting
things which could slow it down by months.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, questions for the gentlewoman on her testimony
shared? Having none, thank you for your presence, Ms. Cadiz.
MS. CADIZ: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pluta, if you would please come down, and following Mr. Pluta we'll
have Michael Trotto.
MR. PLUTA: Good morning, Mr. Chairman and Councilmembers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. PLUTA: Nice to see you. My name is Joseph Pluta, I'm the founding President of the
West Maui Taxpayers, currently the Vice President and Treasurer of the West Maui
Taxpayers Association. I'm here to testify in support of the amendments to the Fiscal
Year 2016 Budget grant to Family Life Center, grant to Ka Hale a Ke Ola establishing a
Homeless Programs Division and acquisition of SpaceMax shelter units, BF-38(26).
The West Maui Taxpayers has held a number of community meetings, most recently
an annual meeting and Councilwoman Cochran was there to see. The community of
West Maui has been keenly aware of this homeless division.., homeless crisis for years
and very pleased to see that it's now being recognized as the crisis it really is. And

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
January 26, 2016

that there's dedicated facilities in place to deal with these things that were built years
ago that have become antiquated and in need of repairs or replacements and
supplemental programs and perhaps a higher degree of interest in monitoring which
with these new positions would be able to deal with in the Housing and Human
Services Division. We join the West Maui, excuse me not the West Maui but the Maui
Homeless Alliance Association, we're attending meetings there and we're very
impressed with that group and their dedication to this issue. It's amazing how many
people are touched by this and how it's being recognized as this is costing us more to
continue the status quo than to deal with this in a productive way. You gotta to put
money to make these things better. There's existing programs in place that need this
help. The amendments to this budget are very vital to be able to adequately address
those programs. So that's it in a nutshell and I certainly hope that you will pass and
approve these amendments. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, mister... any questions for Mr. Pluta?
MR. PLUTA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We thank you for your presence, Joseph, this morning. Michael Trotto,
and he will be followed by Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez.
MR. TROTTO: Good morning, Chair Hokama -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. TROTTO: --and Members of the Budget and Finance Committee. My name is Michael
Trotto. I'm here representing the REALTORS® Association of Maui and its members.
The REALTORS® Association of Maui wishes to go on record in support of the Mayor's
proposal to build temporary sanctuaries for our homeless population as well as
funding a new Homeless Programs Division in the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns to specifically address this important issue. Shelter is a fundamental
human need. And while this will be a somewhat costly endeavor, it will most likely
prove to be even more expensive to allow the situation to continue to go unaddressed.
The homeless population in our State has reached a crisis level and solutions are long
overdue. Homelessness is a crisis not only for the individual experiencing this
condition but for the community as a whole. Having hundreds of individuals and
families wandering through our community in this condition will have negative affects
to us all. The Mayor's proposal recognizes that to seriously address homelessness we
need someone in government that is dedicated and focused on this situation 24/7. If
County government is serious about addressing homelessness, then creating a
division in the Department of Housing and Human Concerns is a minimum first step.
Failing to fund these positions runs the risk of sending the wrong message that we are
not serious about homelessness. Our reoccurring housing shortages that have had
such devastating impacts on our families strongly suggest the County must place
much more attention to this problem of providing shelter that our residents can afford.
Time is of the essence to create a separate housing department that will be fully
engaged and focused on developing solutions to this ongoing problem. The proposed
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sanctuary plan is a good first step that must be followed up by the expeditious
development of transitional housing and ultimately a greatly increased development of
housing that our working population can afford. As outlined in the proposal before
you, a dedicated housing department would be able to explore all available options to
create adequate shelter and could partner with the private sector and private property
owners to provide a supply of much needed affordable rental housing units. In
conclusion, I would like to paraphrase Governor David Ige, government needs to stop
being an impediment to housing development. Therefore, we look to you as County
Councilmembers to lead the way in providing shelter for our homeless and affordable
housing for our working families. Mahalo for the opportunity to provide this testimony
today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Trotto. Members, questions for the gentleman on
testimony shared? We also have his written testimony. Thank you very much for your
testimony this morning.
MR. TROTTO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez, and take your time, Tom, I know you've got
some mobility challenge this morning so take your time.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Thank you for that kindness, Mr. Chairman. You knew me
when I could run and dance. Good morning, Chair Hokama and Members of the
Budget and Finance Committee -CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: --and thank you very much for holding this hearing and
addressing this subject. My name is Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez. I live in Kihei and I
am testifying on behalf of Go Maui in support of amendments to the Fiscal Year 2016
Budget grant to Maui Family Life Center, grant to Ka Hale a Ke Ola establishing a
Homeless Programs Division and acquisition of SpaceMax shelter units on the
Committee's agenda today. Go Maui is a nonpartisan, nonprofit organization focusing
on housing, jobs, water, agriculture, economic opportunity, and the infrastructure
needed to sustain a strong economy, better paying jobs, and a vibrant housing
market. We can be reached at gomauiinc.com. In Kihei, Lahaina, and in other areas
on the island, in particular in the past 18 months many homeless people are
congregating with no place to go. I have never encountered a problem with anyone but
they appear to need help and we must provide it in an organized, effective, and
efficient manner. Moreover, I respectfully ask the Committee to take note of the fact
that as a community we have a moral obligation to not turn away from what we see, to
not look for those to blame, and to not reduce a response to only a financial argument
however important that discussion may be. To take no action on this issue, to fail to
forge a working coalition between the legislative and the executive branches is to
accept things the way they are and they are not good. Finally, I support the creation
of a homeless division within Department of Housing and Human Concerns to both
focus our energies and to seek additional Federal and foundation funding to reduce
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the County's fiscal exposure. Thank you for the opportunity to testify and for your
concern for the homeless. And one final note, I had the opportunity to work with
Chairman Hokama, Mayor Apana, when 9/11 happened. It was an extraordinary
action of government for those who say government doesn't work. Your Chair, and the
former Mayor, put together an emergency program that kept this island out of the
recession that hit everyone else. It can be done, ladies and gentlemen. You have done
it in the past, you should be commended for those actions, and we encourage future
similar actions. Thank you very much. Aloha.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Members, questions for the gentleman on
this testimony for clarification? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Rodriguez,
Blackburn-Rodriguez for coming in today. You mentioned Federal funding, is there a
list of grants that are available for, to help this situation and do you have that list?
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Going back to the days when the current Governor of New
York, Mr. Cuomo, was head of Housing and Urban Development, there was an
initiative undertaken by the Federal government in order to reduce homelessness.
Veterans Affairs is now working on the problem of veterans' homelessness. That
program was a supportive housing program which was similar to Housing First but in
fact recognized, Mr. Couch, that without a array of supportive services, mental health
services, job services, et cetera, you really couldn't address the problem if you were
just putting people in a room somewhere. So there are Federal programs, there are
foundation programs and a dedicated grant writer I'm sure would be able to address
those, and also address the problem that we have here of rising rents. Rents are
increasing and people who could normally afford to rent an apartment are now going
to be facing homelessness. We need to look at that issue of a lack of rental housing
and the need for more rental housing and to look at the rise in rents and whether or
not that's justified. Thank you, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.
Any other questions for clarification?
If not, Mr.
Blackburn-Rodriguez, it's always good to hear your thoughts. Thank you so much.
MR. BLACKBURN -RODRIGUEZ: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for your leadership.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll ask Mr. Dennis Kaaihue if he will please come and share his
comments with the Committee please. And following Mr. Kaaihue will be Larry Koss.
MR. KAAIHUE: Aloha kakaiaka makou.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Aloha.
MR. KAAIHUE: Good morning everyone. My name is Dennis Kaaihue. I'm from Keanae. My
issue actually is focused on the road that goes down to lower Keanae peninsula. I
- 12-
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mentioned before that it is safety and hazard right now, an issue that been going on
for many years. So what I did is that, this my second time, I came here and kind of go
over on the things that we see now that is little bit more worse now. The cracks that is
occurring now on the side of the cliff is getting wide. And it's... recently we had,
already had a landslide so I'm support with Dan Clark, the issue on that. There have
been branches and rocks still coming down. But what is real dangerous now is that
there's a big huge boulder and it's a big _____ and it's sticking halfway out. It looks
like maybe about five feet or so and then they did make a, I would say a bench about
10 feet, 12 feet up high. Don't seem like any other bench because it really kind of
eroded for many months already. So there is still rocks coming down and branches
and the only thing now it's scary is that the trees are growing huge. So what causing
all that is the roots that is growing between the rocks that is pulling out the rocks and
having the landslide. I'm on behalf of the old kupunas too. I voice their concern too
because they can't come here, they're too old, they can't drive, and also for the
community. It is a safety and hazard issue but we never did have a very serious
problem in lower Keanae but all it takes just one big problem and that's it. The pilikia
is already done and it's too late to even come here and talk, you know. There is a, how
would you say, hopefully there is a way or situation that we can deal with this. And I
think that's my testament. I also have noticed that, if you don't mind, we all talking
about homelessness. I'm a farmer and I'm a laau kane. Back in my old days, my
grandfather days, moopuna, we never had pilikia like this. I think the biggest thing
for me a higher work transit, local transit for Maui farmers. And Maui farmers need
help, support. So maybe it would be good, you know, we, a lot of them too that was
homeless that they come here and I listen to them, they talking about all their pilikia
but when they come I teach them how to fish, I teach them how to farm. I teach them
something about the community. And then they have something that is worth value.
I think that's where we should go back to the basic. Teaching them how to fish,
teaching them how to socialize. I think this is all I got to say. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kaaihue, for your thoughts. Any questions for
Mr. Kaaihue? Okay. Having none, thank you very much for your presence. Mr. Koss,
if you would come forward and share your comments with us please?
MR. KOSS: Good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. KOSS: Good morning. Thank you for this opportunity. I recognize I was wearing the
same t-shirt about two weeks ago, right about three weeks ago. So my name is Larry
Koss, I live in Wailuku and I'd like to address the issue of the 47-acre proposed resort
in Makena.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But we're not, we don't have that on the agenda today, Mr. Koss.
MR. KOSS: Pardon?
MS. BAlSA: Planning Commission.
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MR. KOSS: Planning Commission? Different place?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is the Council's Budget Committee.
MR. KOSS: Oh really? Oh, sorry to bother you. Where do I go? Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not a problem. Not a problem. Yeah, yeah, yeah. Right time, wrong
meeting. Is there anyone else wishing to provide testimony? Please make yourself
known at this time. Hana Office, Ms. Lono, is there anyone from Hana or East Maui
wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono in Hana and there is no one waiting to
testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Fernandez on Lanai, anyone wishing to provide
testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Alcon on Molokai, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, ladies. Members, with no further requests for testimony,
testimony shall be closed for today's meeting. No objections?
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. So ordered. Testimony shall end and we shall move on to the
start of deliberations.
• .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM 38(33): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(TRANSFERRING APPROPRIATIONS WITHIN THE
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION)
CHAIR HOKAMA: May I direct you to our first item which is an amendment to the Fiscal
Year 2016 Budget and this is regarding a transfer request within the Department of
Parks and Recreation. This is under 38-33 and we have a communication dated
December 23rd of 2015 from Mr. Baz. So, Mr. Baz, would you give us your comments
please?
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MR. BAZ: Good morning, Mr. Chair. The Parks Department is requesting a transfer of
appropriations in the amount of $4,000 between their operating budget and their
equipment budget so that they can lease a copier. They had purchased a copier
previously that is dying and they're spending a lot of money on maintenance and
having it down quite a bit. So they are preferring to lease a copier this year, large
capacity copier, for the Parks system and that's what this transfer's intent is. So I'll be
happy to answer any questions maybe if you have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you. Mr. Baz, is the copier that will be located in the
Parks Department office or someplace central? Is that going, you know, to a district
office or where is it located?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, thank you. Member Guzman, my understanding is this is for the
administration office. So directors use that and I believe the planning section you
know around, everybody around the director's office there at War Memorial.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Okay. So what about the district offices? Will they
have access to such type of copying or are you going to transport, you know deliver the
copies that way or how does that work for the district offices?
MR. BAZ: I'm not sure. I'd have to go look and see if they have their own copiers and I
believe the district offices would have their own copy machines.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, if it's a necessary equipment upgrade and, you know, if
the other one is.. .was any thought given, I guess the question I would have, the only
question I would ask is was there any thought of purchasing versus leasing or the
difference?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you. And Member Victorino, that's a good question. We've
looked at a couple different scenarios, especially looking in to FY '17 Budget request
coming up shortly. We have a few departments that are requesting purchases. Most
departments do request leases. It really depends on the life of the equipment and the
usage of it. In one instance we looked at in Public Works it was more advantageous to
buy the copier versus leasing it. But in other instances we looked at leasing is more
advantageous. So it really depends on the usage, what we found out.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: When you say usage, you mean heavy usage, continuous
usage, what is, why is the difference and I guess, Mr. Chair, excuse me for asking this
question, what is the real difference other than usage between buying and leasing?
MR. BAZ: Cost is the, really the only difference is cost. If you look at a five-year lease versus
a purchase, you know, amortized over the five years -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --and those different costs they come just about dead even. If the equipment is
heavily used and can, is in an environment that isn't, you know, very advantageous to
electronic equipment then leasing is better because we can get it upgraded quicker. If
it's in an office where, you know, either the usage is lower or it, you know, it's clean
and, you know, there's no problems with that then the longevity of the equipment can
last longer than the five-year lease cycle. So that's why I say it really just depends on,
you know, those different factors we looked at.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So cost isn't the only thing, it's upgrades and the type of
usage is basically what you're saying?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, well we typically look, the decision making would be on the cost difference
between but the longevity yes is a factor of that eventual cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. We're -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --going to have
. Just so you know, Mr. Victorino, in budget we will
be discussing more about lease versus purchase 'cause I'm considering that for the
whole fleet -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to go to lease. Mr. Carroll, any questions at this time, sir? Ms.
Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White? Mr. Guzman, any further questions, sir?
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thank you. Just a follow-up on Mr. Victorino's line of
questioning. On the lease versus purchasing, I know that I leased a heavy-duty copy
machine for more than I think 15 years. And when I did the numbers I said okay
yeah, actually it's a savings to lease it because you, I guess the deal was they would
come in and replace the print and also that it was free maintenance. They'd come in
and they'd fix it. But the only downfall that I found was that I had to pay per copy. So
they needed the count so every month I had to send via e-mail the count of copies that
it recorded on the machine and then I purchased it, you know, I'd have to pay a
certain fee. I think it was like three cents a copy or two cents, something like that. So
my question is, is it going to be a heavy-duty type production? So if it is then, you
know, the leasing portion of it, it could run more so then purchased. It depends on
what is your production. Is it high volume?
MR. BAZ: So, Member Guzman, thank you. They actually, they charge us for per copy no
matter what, whether we purchase it or we lease it there's still a per copy price that we
have to pay. And it's less than a penny for black and white and then I forget how
much it is for color, six cents or something.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh why would they charge you for a copy if you already
owned the machine?
MR. BAZ: Because they're replacing the toner and the -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. That was part of the deal with you guys.
MR. BAZ: --all that kind of stuff included as part of the maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Part of the maintenance.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, agreement with...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So they'll replace the toners -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --for free.
MR. BAZ: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But you pay for the... maintenance fee. Okay I get it.
MR. BAZ: And on top of ownership we have to pay a maintenance fee as well. So that's why
I said every time, you know, we gotta kind of analyze it and see which is the most cost
advantageous.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: And you took from our, you can negotiate the contracts by
each one of them. They're just like...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, the Chair understands.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, thanks.
MR. BAZ: And we do, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any further questions, Members, on the first item? If not, the Chair is
recommending adoption of the proposed bill for an ordinance to transfer Category B to
Category C for lease equipment. I'll entertain a motion on that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. It's a resolution.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excuse me, a resolution. Yeah, thank you for the.. .we're asking for
consideration of a resolution to recommend to Council for final adoption. Okay, are
we clear on the motion, Members?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any further discussion? All in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with nine affirmative votes. Thank you.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution by C.R.
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ITEM 38(34): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBLIC SAFETY - UNITED
STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE FOREST
SERVICE (OLOWALU FIRE BREAK COMPETITIVE
WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE GRANT))
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll move onto the next item which is 38(34).
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Before you get started -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --may I be excused because I need to have a conference call
as you well know for EELU this morning at 10 o'clock. So with no ... if I may be
excused.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the request. Thank you. Before you, Members, let's bring
up 38(34). This is a bill for an ordinance amending Appendix A, Part I, Fiscal Year
2016 Budget under Grant Revenues - Schedule of Grants by departments. This is for
the Department of Fire and Public Safety in regards to a USDA, which is our United
States Department of Agriculture Forest Service grant. So we'll ask Mr. Baz as well as
the Chief for their comments regarding this consideration this morning.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning again. So this request is to add to
the Appendix A, Part I of our Budget Ordinance in Grant Revenue the grant from the
U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service Division for the Olowalu Fire Break. It
was a competitive grant that the Department of Fire and Public Safety applied for and
was awarded. So this $22,138 is going to be received by our Department. They can
share with you their opening comments and we can answer any questions you might
have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief, good morning. Any comments you can share with us
regarding this item please?
MR. MURRAY: Aloha and good morning, Chair and Councilmembers. This is a project to
help with the fire break situation in Olowalu and we work closely with the West Maui
Land Company and they already have done all the work there to protect the houses in
that area. And we helped with the grant process because there was a retirement at
the State level that usually handled the grant process for the Community Wildiand
Protection Program. And so we took that over maybe about nine months into the
process. So this would be for in-kind services that we would pay West Maui Land
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Company that already did the project. And we're just fostering this grant process for
that. So we want to thank West Maui Land Company for doing all of that work for us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. So again so as we are understanding, Chief, the work
has been completed then right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. We'll ask... IEM, IEM... Ms. Cochran, this is under your
area I guess, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you very much, Chair. And thank you, Chief,
for being here this morning. So yeah I've seen the work going on as I drive by every
day and so you're saying it's completed, 'cause it's around where the store are is, I
mean that's I think where they're...
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. And this, so this is a 50/50 match, this grant?
MR. MURRAY: Right. So USDA provides the 50 match for us but it's coming through us as
our Department because we did the grant. Normally it goes through the State
Department of Forestry. They were supposed to have spearhead it but because they
had a retirement and we wanted to speed up the process we took over that grant and
so West Maui Land Company provided in excess of $22,000 for their services, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So you can, so it didn't have to be a dollar amount per se. It
can be an in-kind service that equates to that amount which -MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --makes up the 50 match?
MR. MURRAY: So basically it came out to 44,000 plus and actually West Maui did much
more than that to get it done. So we had to prorate the hours and all of that whole
project to come up with the 50 match through USDA.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And are we reimbursing them with this?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. West Maui Land.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: West Maui Land. Okay. And yeah it looks like definitely
needed in that area, very dry, and thank you for your folks' hard work on the Pali last,
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the other day which, and as soon as I was kind of inquiring how long is this going to
be it was pau, roads opened up, and traffic was flowing again. So, but then
unfortunately the next day it flared up again.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which I guess occurs. But thank you folks for being on the
spot and doing, you know, your best. Because that area, Chair, as we know the Pali
and in other areas in West Maui, very difficult terrain. The trucks cannot go. I don't
care what kind of truck we buy. And so it was all helicopter dropped and so good job
on that. But yeah no further questions. I just want to commend the Department for
their quick work in protecting our, you know, life, property, and what their mission is
about. So and this is definitely an item that will help, yeah, help that. So thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions but commendation. Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, any questions for the Chief? Mr. Guzman, anything for Chief
Murray or Director Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: None at this time. Just to congratulate them and thank them
for their service and their innovative process to get things going at a much quicker
pace than usual.
MR. MURRAY: You're welcome
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: You know how our government can be but being proactive is
such a good character in that Department. So thank you very much.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would also say I'm, one I support the moving this forward, Members, to
Council. Second, again we all appreciate the continued and regular quality of work
our firefighters provide the community. The one thing though, Chief, I can tell you
was interesting on the radio prior to even you I would assume completing your
investigation, there was a comment that the windmill caused the fire. And so I will be
happy to find the results of your investigation on what actually caused the fire.
'Cause I would hate for people to get the most, the incorrect assumption that it was
something when it wasn't. And so your investigative components of following through
on the case or incident is much appreciated and looked forward to.
MR. MURRAY: If I may, Chair, the investigation is not complete yet but I can assure you that
that was not the case at that fire.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, and that's why it's interesting the radio -MR. MURRAY: I can confirm that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --was able to give some kind of a...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, you know, we've got a lot of speculators out there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, what can I say with 24-hour news you've got to make it up
sometimes.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If you don't mind. Another comment in relation.. .and of
course thank you to West Maui Land for the job they did.
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But my office did get some negative I guess comments
during that work process in regards to them not knowing what's going on over here,
what are these piles of dry shrub, you know, everything they were compiling up over
there and the dust factor was affecting them. So I did have.. .just so we all know and
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your Department too that there were actually concerns during the work process. But
I'm sure in the end after it was all said and done and explained what this is for and it's
to only, you know, assist in creating your community safer and what have you, they
understood. But again during the process I, my office did get some calls.
MR. MURRAY: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So just for your reference and this body's reference.
MR. MURRAY: Well thank you for that. We apologize for those complaints. There was
informationals that went out that area and I believe meeting that happened prior to all
of this happening because that is part of the CWPP process. So I'm sorry that we
didn't reach everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that happens you know.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for your patience.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But yeah just for the comment, just -MR. MURRAY: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to give you the comments. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that constructive comments. I'm sure the Chief will
utilize it to their benefit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions for the Chief or Mr. Baz? Having none, I will entertain
a motion to move forward to Council passage on first reading be ordered to print a bill
for an ordinance amending Appendix A, Part I, Grant Revenue - Fiscal Year 2016
Budget, Schedule of Grants by Departments and Programs, Department of Fire and
Public Safety, USDA Forest Service.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Ms. Crivello. Members, any
further discussion on the motion before you?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No filing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, there's nothing for us to file. This is one umbrella item. Okay,
Members, no further discussion. Also, with no objections, allow Staff to make any
nonsubstantive changes as it regards to the format and presentation of the proposed
ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. All in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with seven "ayes," two excused,
Mr. Guzman and Mr. Victorino.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
and Crivello.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Guzman, and Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Chief. We appreciate your presence.
MR. MURRAY: Alright, thank you. You're very welcome. Have a great day.

ITEM 38(11): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(KEANAE ROAD SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, may I direct you to 38(11). This is as regards to the Keanae Road
safety improvements project for the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. We have Mr. Baz and
Mr. Goode, our Directors of Budget and Public Works Departments. So I'll ask Mr.
Baz first if he has any opening comments from the Budget Department regarding this
item.
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MR. BAZ: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. So recently we transmitted a revised amendment per
the Committee's request in the amount of $400,000 for this item, for the Keanae Road
safety projects for their design phase. Looking at some of the cost items there are
some things the Director can explain the details of possibly the shift of the financing of
that. But the Committee had requested a $400,000 funding level so we had revised,
sent that revised down for your review and hopefully approval this morning and we're
here to answer any questions as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much for that, Director. Director Goode, we are open to
your opening comments regarding this request.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members. David Goode here,
Department of Public Works. Actually Ms. Yoshimura is handing out I think pictures
of the slide that Mr. Clark mentioned that happened the day we had our meeting last
time. So the mountain continues to move, and the request and thanks again for
scheduling it so we can hopefully move forward one way or the other. You know the
Department requested a half million dollars based on preliminary discussions with
some potential consultants and the nature of the work being rather complicated with
that hillside and a lot of geotechnical work is going to be needed. And also some
unknowns based on what that work might come up with. So we will do our best to
make the 400,000 work. We may not quite make it in which case well probably look
at either the Hana District resurfacing funds or Countywide safety to make up any
differences. The work will be conducted in two phases. So we will be doing a lot of the
survey and geotechnical work first to identify what the issues are with the mountain.
We'll certainly be forwarding that information having to do with anything on the
State's property to the State, and based on all that then well start to scope out in
better detail what engineering work is required and we'll see where we're at.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that and thank you for sending the revised bill, Director
Baz. We appreciate that. Mr. Carroll, questions for our Directors on this request?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Actually I have no questions. I'm very familiar with the
project. I'd just like to say thank you for bringing this forward. It's really important to
the people that live down there and the local people and the visitors that traverse that
road. I will say that if there is any State obligation inside there this study will allow us
to address that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No. In full support of our Hana person's recommendation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Director, for being here,
and yes definitely supportive of the job. And this is again for planning and design
currently?
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MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And any word with State yet on their end and their line,
where their line sits at all?
MR. GOODE: We're going to, Chair, Ms. Cochran, we're going to approach the State as we
begin the work. We'll need a right-of-entry to get on their property to do all this
geotechnical and survey work. And through that right-of-entry process we're going to
advise them, well they're going to know, but we're going to advise them that we're
going to be forwarding them the results and that, you know, should we find that
there's issues related to their property it'll essentially serve to put them on notice.
And I think through that process then we could then approach the State for funding,
perhaps next fiscal year with the State.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Is there, have you ever seen I guess a collaboration
say with the State in such efforts just to agree together that it's a hazard for the
residents and visitors alike? And regardless where that line is there's a slope, there's a
mountain, it's falling. Can we both just say hey, let's know that and let's work on the
issue which is the roadway, realign it, whatever it needs to be done. You know revet
up the mountain side. I mean just together collaboratively agree that both sides
equally or, you know, have a responsibility to protect the citizens and the people in the
community. Has that ever been done? Just kind of common sense like that way?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you recall, Director?
MR. GOODE: Well maybe not in a rock fall situation but for us I guess the good news if you
will is that the State Department of Transportation is the keeper of the property and
we work very closely with State DOT, both Honolulu office and here locally. So we
have a very good working relationship. The reports that are generated, you know,
identifying what the issues are will serve as the basis to have that discussion. I don't
anticipate them shirking their responsibilities. Again because we have a good working
relationship and we have in the past, we've had two projects, not rock fall related but
we had both Upcountry the Haleakala Highway-Makawao Avenue Intersection is a
joint project between us and DOT. We both put in monies for that. Old Haleakala
Highway sidewalk, they appropriated funds as well as we did. We ran that project for
them. So on both cases the State through the Department of Transportation have
appropriated funds and we ran the projects. So I envision this one being similar.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well that's good. I'm thinking of that huge fall and
I'm not sure they area on the Hana Highway but they had to put up the big, you know,
the netting and all that and it happened pretty quickly. That whole mountain, I mean
it really did cave in and block that entire road. So I think that probably had to have
been a similar situation and that in my eyes is as, you know, huge as that project was,
happened... got fixed very quickly because it was the Hana Highway itself. So I'm not
sure how that came to fruition in such a quick turnaround but hopefully we can...
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MR. GOODE: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think once we get, the Director has a little bit more, narrow down the
project costs including construction is when he can start negotiating with the State.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It has happened with sister counties, with sister states outside of Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well very good. I think yeah, I'm very much in
agreement and like to see this expedited to assist the area. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions but just like to comment that, Chair, thank
you for bringing this forward, and I appreciate the Department's effort to start the
looking into the resolutions, and it's always appreciative when we take a look at the
small rural areas that it doesn't matter what your population is. It's addressing the
needs for public safety. So I am in true support of us pushing this forward so that we
can come to the implementation of the work. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White, any questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, questions, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nothing further, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Carroll, any further questions or comments you wish to share
on this request?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Just that I thank the Council for their
support. I ask for their support and I'm sure that we have worked with the State
many times on this, and the only way we're going to be able to discern responsibility is
by passing this out and doing the work. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair will, is supportive of this request regarding the two
proposed bills for an ordinance. I will tell you though upfront I am gonna look at
increasing Gas Tax to pay for all of this road, highway projects we are gonna be
considering now and in the near future. Someone has to pay the bill. Okay, so I don't
have a problem us moving forward projects that's gonna take millions to get done, but
we need to beef up the pot of where we're gonna take the money to pay for these
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projects. So I'm giving you advance that I'm gonna be proposing a Gas Tax increase,
especially if we're gonna have to pay for an MPO also. So be prepared for tax
consideration, Members. With that, the Chair is open to a motion to move forward to
Council for recommendation on passage on first reading be ordered to print two bills
for an ordinance. The first one is Amending Fiscal Year 2016 Budget as it Pertains to
Estimated Revenues, Hana Community Planned Area Road Improvements, Keanae
Road Safety Improvements, Total CIP Appropriations; and Total Appropriations
(Operating and Capital Improvement Projects). As well as a second bill, a Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Ordinance 4228, Bill Number 35 (2015), Relating to the Issuance
of General Obligation Bonds of the County of Maui, the Keanae Road Safety
Improvements. And that is again, Members, at this time $400,000 to get the ball
rolling.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. White and seconded by Mr. Carroll.
Members, also with no objections, allow Staff to make nonsubstantive changes to the
proposed ordinances.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any further discussion, Members, on the motion before
you relating to the two bills for an ordinances? Having none, all in favor of the motion,
please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with eight "ayes," one excused,
Mr. Victorino.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, and Guzman.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmember Victorino.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION:

FIRST READING of revised bills by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Members.

ITEM 38(9): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(SOUTH MAUI REGIONAL TRAFFIC MASTER PLAN)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well take up BF 38(9) at this time. And we thank the Director for his
photograph of the Keanae situation. So thank you, Director Goode. Thirty eight dash
nine, we are also in receipt of a bill for an ordinance, two bills for an ordinance from
the Director of Budget. Let's see, the first one is to amend our 2016 Budget under
estimated revenues, Kihei-Makena Community Plan, road improvements. This is
regarding the Regional Traffic Master Plan. And it is to amend revenues in the
Highway Fund by 340,000. We are adding an appropriation from the Highway Fund of
the similar amount for the South Maui Regional Traffic Master Plan. And a second bill
which is to amend Appendix A of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget by adding for the
Department of Public Works, Federal Highway Administration, Federal-Aid and other
transportation grants by 342,000 again for the South Maui Regional Master Plan. And
you will find a certification of additional revenues dated September 25, 2015. Mr. Baz,
any opening comments from your Department, sir?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Just before you are the two proposed bills as read and we
are here to answer any questions that you might have regarding this project. I think
it's had some discussion a little bit last year during the budget deliberations but we're
happy to continue discussion on it and happy to receive the Fed-Aid monies to be able
to pay for a big portion of the cost of this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Director Goode, your thoughts please?
MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chair. The, this project, you know, is in our current budget. I
believe we had originally had looked at using some funds that we had from a
particular project along the North-South Collector Road. The study anticipates
looking at South Kihei Road, the North-South Collector, Piilani, and potentially mauka
Piilani Highway for lack of a better term. But I believe those project funds could not
be, were more of improvements rather than for a study. In the meantime, we're able to
get some Federal/State match, they're Federal funds that go through the State. And
we are, we have a consultant selected, we have a scope of work and contract
negotiated and so once we have the funding in place in the budget we can start
moving on that project. It's anticipated to take 18 to 24 months. It's a significant
amount of work, with a lot of data crunching. There's going to be community and
public meetings. There's going to be various scenarios derived out of the document,
and ultimately it needs to be something that's worked with the State. Because we
want to use this and we need to use this to continue to justify, you know, the exact
laneage requirements for South Kihei Road as we continue to improve South Kihei
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Road going north from Lipoa as well as the segments of the North-South Collector
Road that are dying to be built. And we do have the North-South Collector in the STIP
I think for 2020. So to keep on that path it's time to commence the study and we can
move forward on those projects, and that's it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this something down the road you could get reimbursed from the
potential MPO? Or is this something you don't think it could be a reimbursable?
MR. GOODE: You know, Chair, I think we can certainly ask the question. I don't know the
particulars of how that's going to work. My understanding with the MPO is once it's
up and running is they're going to need to come up with a work plan. And that plan
would identify various areas that need study, including South Maui. So because the
area for the MPO is the entire island they'll have to look at everything and come up
with a plan. If that bubbles up to near the top, I think it's something we can certainly
ask the question. They'll have to look at the consideration well if we're already getting
some Federal funds, would that qualify for more, et cetera.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you -MR. GOODE: Or there's a process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --currently working on.. .your basis of work is on the already drawn but
not accepted circle around the island? Is that how you folks proceeding? You're going
on that assumption that the circle is the island?
MR. GOODE: Certainly as it relates to try to ask for some kind of reimbursement on this
project. Yeah, if the law is it's within the, what they're calling MPA, the planning
area -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. GOODE: --metropolitan planning area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, you know like everything the Feds do it's a two-edged sword.
So as my understanding is currently because of the circle and we have Federal
administrators checking out my concern, there's a chance this County's going to lose
CDBG funding for this whole island because of the circle, because it'll be considered
urban. Under HUD we're under rural and blight redevelopment designation. So my
understanding from one Federal administrator we may have very negative impacts
from the circle as it regards to CDBG. And so that's something I'm taking under
consideration. And I'll let the Members know that this is one of the factors again of
not thinking things through. So on this specific item, Mr. Couch, South Maui
Regional Plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for bringing this up.
Mr. Goode answered a couple of the questions I had and I guess you've been reading
my notes because I had the same question on the MPO. That's a kind of a...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I've already submitted my questions to the Feds.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, good. I just wanted to say, you know, we've been
approving projects, a couple of projects in the North Kihei area, especially that are
going to depend on the North-South Collector Road going in there. So the sooner we
can get this done the better. You said it's going to take 18 months to do the study?
MR. GOODE: Correct, 18 to 24 months.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And so is that, are they doing you know traffic counts and all
that whole thing again? Or can they look at data that was done on previous studies?
MR. GOODE: Typically, Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, they would typically pull from all of the
existing studies that they can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: They may have to supplement with other counts where there's gaps.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Okay. Well, the sooner we can get that done, the better.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Director Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. I just wanted to, Member... excuse me not Member, Mr. Goode had
mentioned about the some funding that was available from a project development, that
$246,000 was actually funded this year, project designing the North-South Collector
Road from Namauu Place to Kulanihakoi Street. So the 240 of it was from Betsill and
6,000 was from Napa project over there. So that funding will allow the design of that
phase of the North-South Collector Road to be completed before we go into
construction for that next year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Director. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a follow-up on that question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Was it, it was Namauu to Waipuilani yes? 'Cause if you go the
other way it's going to be a bridge that has to go in.
MR. BAZ: I ... it could be a bridge. The future construction cost is $7 million, so.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh wow.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BAZ: But yeah, the project sheet was for Namauu Place to Kulanihakoi Street.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Miss.. .which way was I going now?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You started here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I started there? Ms. Crivello, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Maybe, well the question I had was why this is a 50 percent match, or
roughly 50 percent, versus the normal 20 percent from the County?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, Mr. White, I don't know the particulars of that. I'd have to
investigate and get back to the Committee.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. 'Cause our normal match on projects is 20 percent from the
County versus 80 percent from the Feds. So I'm just was wondering why this, our
study is dealt with differently than the actual construction projects. And I would
think they are because the MPO is not a project, it's planning which this would seem
to be and the MPO is a 80/20 match.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right. Director Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I had that question, my notes show that the reason why,
the project is proposed to be $682,000. We received a specific amount for this project
of $342,000 from the Feds. So that's what we received for the project.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well would that indicate then that the Feds feel that the study, the
cost of the study, well let me rephrase that, would the Feds by giving us that specific
amount be saying that they're anticipation that is that what they're providing is
80 percent of the anticipated costs? And how did we arrive at the total project cost?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I wouldn't be able to answer those questions.
MR. GOODE: I can answer the second part of it.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Director Goode?
MR. GOODE: So the second part of the question was the total cost came upon when going
through our process, the consultant selection, finding the best consultant for this type
of work, and then negotiating with them the scope of the work and the value of that
scope of work. So our staff typically has a number of back and forth's with the
consultants they select to understand what the scope, what they understand the
scope to be and what the consultant understands the scope to be. And then how
many man-hours from project manager on down, civil engineers to clerical staff. And
so my understanding is that we've basically negotiated, you know, the basis for the
contract a total of 682 which would come from these 2 sources. But again I don't
know where the 50, it appears to be exactly 50 percent Federal and local and I don't
know if that's exactly what, the way that it works on these particular Federal funds or
if that's all they had for Maui County was 342, I don't know yet. I'd have to find that
out.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, question, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Not really. I think Mr. White did a fine job asking that
question. I just have a very elementary question. On the certification of additional
revenues for the Fiscal Year 2016 dated September 25 for 350,000 in
Carryover/ Savings from the Highway Fund, what exactly is that? Can you explain -CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll let Mr. Baz...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
--the process of what's going on here?
Is this
Carryover/ Savings that we're going to take from the fund and then match it to the
supposedly questionable 50/50 split?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. So, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Thank you, Member Guzman. So anytime we are presenting a budget
amendment to the Council there are, we have to certify that there's going to be
available funds for that budget amendment. So the different sources, if it's bond like
the Keanae one previously of course, you know, we have to review and revise the bond
authorization bill to add that money and so we have that additional revenue. But for
many of the budget amendments we are using cash for it. So to use, to utilize the
cash we have to recognize those funds from some purpose. Today you have multiple
budget amendments that are requesting monies from Carryover/ Savings. So basically
after the end of the fiscal year we have a good idea of what, how much, you know,
additional funds they have, you know, unreserved fund balance of the different funds
so we can utilize that to pay for these. Sometimes we have additional revenues,
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miscellaneous revenues for some purpose that, you know, we weren't expecting when
we produced the budget but this one has come in so we recognize that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So this basically will be coming from the Carryover/ Savings?
MR. BAZ: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Anticipated?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: So it's the Carryover/ Savings from the Highway Fund that was anticipated -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --after the Fiscal Year '15 close.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Sorry, it's a lot of amendments coming
down.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no, no. I rather you ask the question than not.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I haven't seen this type of request since I've been in office. So
it's kind of-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well normally you don't get it once -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --inundating us.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I mean that early, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: September, that's only two months in to the new budget year.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So normally you don't get Carryover/ Savings kind of -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --considerations that early in the fiscal year, so.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: But hey it's been certified which means it is available by the
Administration. So it's our decision this morning how we want to proceed on this
item. Any further questions, Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Nothing further. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Between Mr. White and Mr. Guzman all my
questions have been answered. So I'm good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions for the directors? Thank
you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No questions but I do want to say that I'm very happy that this is
before us. You know every meeting that we go to, in fact there's probably a big
meeting going on right now and the subject is always traffic, traffic, traffic. And we
can't have any more real cars on the road and how do we solve it and whatever. So I
think we've got to do this. It's very important to our decision making. So we're going
to have to spend some money but I think we need it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. My question is in regards to this
Federal-Aid Highways 2035 Transportation Plan for the District of Maui, done July
2014. So this is done by the Federal government?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll have Mr. Goode respond to that question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Just a little idea of where, you know, who produced this,
what does it aim to do, and so today's amendment is to, is in regards to this South
Maui regional which is a supplemental to this Federal-Aid Highway Transportation
Plan. Is that right? I think I have a couple questions in there at once.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, can you respond to the question from -MR. GOODE: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Cochran, please?
MR. GOODE: The.. .1 know about the plan. I'm not sure how it's referenced here in the
Budget Ordinance, but this particular plan is a look ahead, a 20-year projection of
anticipating, you know, Federal funds in the amounts we've been receiving
historically. And for each County and the State to look at, look ahead 20 years and
say okay what are you, what are you going to be able to do with these monies. Not
anticipating anymore and to try to identify projects that, you know, that can fit in that
budget. 'Cause too often we, as we go along we say oh let's do this now and do that.
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What happens is you're just pushing, when you bring in something new you push
something out. And so it was a process that the State went through to try to get
everybody kind of laser focused on, you know, realization that we have a fixed amount
Federal funds. And so I know my conversations with the State they typically talk
about this one it's either, you know, new projects or any project either being above the
line or below the line. And if you're above the line you're in that 20-year window and
it's been identified. So evidently this is one of those projects. If you're below the line
the State's really, their perspective is, you know, unless you want to push one of your
own projects out we're not going to focus on stuff that's not in this above the line. You
know we're wasting resources by focusing on projects that are below the line. It's one
of the reasons the State got so far behind in some of their Federal funds and as they
work that list down. So I think it was actually a very healthy project. It helps all of us
remember that, you know, the Federal funds are really important. The fact that it was
reauthorized and at same or higher levels extremely important because it didn't and it
went down 30 percent, that whole plan out the door and the line would just go up
because we have less projects. So again I'm not certain why exactly it's referenced in
this particular bill but that plan is really important for us to remember, you know,
what we can and can't do. And it's flexible enough that, you know, hey if something
important comes up, yeah we can reprioritize. It's something the MPO would do,
reprioritize. Okay, this came in and we've had to move it above the line. But we have
to recognize, now we've got the responsibility to move something out. So anyway
that's kind of long winded but it's a good opportunity for me to talk about the plan.
Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. And so the South Maui SMTMP which was
last updated in October 1996 and now this is, what you're asking for today is a
supplemental to that whole plan that you just mentioned by the State and the FederalAid and all that? That's, so this is bearing on that -MR. GOODE: This will be a new plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --old 1996 South Maui plan?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, the South Maui Traffic Master Plan, right. This will be a new one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that, the transportation plan for District of Maui,
that means Maui County or just the island of Maui? Do you know?
MR. GOODE: Well, probably I think in effect Maui island is the transportation plan because
Molokai and Lanai, no offense to the Members...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Don't have roads connected.
MR. GOODE: Yeah it doesn't have the traffic demands to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
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MR. GOODE: --I guess warrant those improvements where you're having, you know, where
you're adding going from two lanes to four lanes or adding traffic signals, projects like
that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I'm not sure. I'd have to find out -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright.
MR. GOODE: --exactly what it means.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it just intrigued me, Chair, wondering if West Maui
has, what does this say about West Maui. I mean with the bypass and everything else
that's been built on that end of the island, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Feds concentrate on the urban so a lot of focus is on MPOs or the
municipals. But there is rural planning organizations also for the Molokai, Lanai's,
Hana's if we want to choose to consider those type of entities. It's out there for us to
consider it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you. That's...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Further questions, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no, that's all, Chair. Yeah, in support.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director, what I was going to say is, you know, since Ms. Cochran brought
up the plan and, you know, it may be old but there's a plan. Every time an
independent project comes with their traffic engineers and their update for this South
Maui area, is that then taken into account and put into the current traffic plan as an
update if the County accepts that specific project's traffic assessment?
MR. GOODE: I don't believe so. I mean if, I think if we had the resources we could make it
more of a living document...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I just bring that up 'cause, you know, you guys would have to agree.
State has to sign off, so both levels of government's transportation departments or
some people with responsibility is signing off on this private sector's proposal right as
it impacts public facilities? So I'm going why wouldn't that be part of the update?
MR. GOODE: If we could update it like on an annual basis you mean? Yeah I mean, if
we... there's a possibility of making it a living, like a living document, you know, where
you could constantly adjust. I think we'd love to have that capability. I'm not sure we
have the resources to do it. But it's something I can certainly ask the staff about and
see if there's a --37-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause, you know -MR. GOODE: --possibility of making this plan more like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --just between the nine of us, all of us have unique information, historic
information of our districts that if we weren't here nobody would remember basically.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it's true.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean I can forget things and nobody's going to bring up what happened
to Lanai 30 years ago 'cause most of, we got so much people who weren't there for 30
years. So again, you know, my concern is we need to have these places placed in the
appropriate document so it doesn't matter if we're here or not. Those commitments or
promises we made to the district or the community can be fulfilled rather than ignored
of like conditions of zoning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that was my concern. Any other questions, Members? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not so much a question but a quick comment and
Mr. White can attest yesterday if anyone had a chance to listen to the Governor's State
of the State; one of the things was the spend down especially in the area of DOT and
other where there's lots of Federal funds are not being spent down. So again, the
reason I bring this up even though it may be not germane to just this project but
many others, that now's the time to get our foot in the door. Because they are in
desperate need of spend down because they've just accumulated like, you know,
Mr. Chair, an accumulation of a lot of Federal funds that's somehow just not getting
spent. And we have a chance of maybe losing some of that Federal funding. So he did
commit to a number of projects and I don't remember all of them but I think it's
important to understand that there is a need right now. So here in Maui County,
gentlemen, Mr. Goode, let's look at what we can. And I think this would also go for
water and our wastewater area. I think there is Federal funding that's sitting there
that needs to spent down and I think it's very important and crucial that we get out
the gate right away. You know if you and your various department heads, Mr. Baz,
and the Mayor can start pressing this. Again the early bird gets the worm, the rest of
us sit waiting for next time around. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I would say that from my perspective the County has done a
good job in trying to qualify, receive, and expend Federal dollars. I think that for those
who've had meeting with EPA and Department of Health regarding Safe Drinking
Water funds, and other types of Revolving Fund water... monies available. More than
likely it will just sit on one State bureaucrat's desk for weeks more than likely is my
experience.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair, I understand the Governor has committed to
make sure that does not continue. So we'll see what happens but--38-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
January 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -- you know the key is...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll see it in the actual.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In the actual but -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the key there is he's made it public and I think now's the
time to press it and let's see what we can come up with in addition to what we already
have received. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Victorino. Further questions for either
Director, Members? If not, the Chair is open to a motion to move forward to Council
for passage on first reading be ordered to print two bills for an ordinance as it relates
to 38(9). The first one is to amend the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget of the County as it
pertains to estimated revenues, Kihei Community, Makena Community Plan, and this
is for an amendment to increase revenues and adding appropriation of $340,000 from
the Highway Fund for a Regional Traffic Plan. And number two, the bill, second bill
for an ordinance to amend Appendix A, Part I, Grant Revenue, under Federal Highway
Administration, Federal-Aid and other Transportation Grants by adding this $342,000
project for South Maui Regional Master Plan, whereby the total under Federal Highway
Grants, Department of Public Works, will come to $19,147,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So move, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Couch. Members, further
discussion on the motion before you?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I'm willing to pass, support this but I still would like to
know the actual details of the 80/20, 50/50 split.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We will send -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --a request to Director Goode if he can hopefully respond by the time
Council, before Council takes action.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, very good. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll forward that question. Thank you. You got that, please? Thank
you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quickly, Chair. I'm very thankful that this can get
started. I think once South Maui's completed I'd like to see other traffic studies
especially for West Maui because of its unique situation and Central and Upcountry
because those two areas have changed dramatically through the last 20 years and.
you know. it's time for us to start looking at these areas. I don't know if the MPO
would be the answer. I think it's a start, but I don't know if it's the complete answer
to the needs of the County. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I look forward to future discussions as well as specific
recommendations since Ms. Crivello is on this issue. She's considering another
posting shortly so, you know, we'll look at her and her Committee for guidance
regarding the MPO.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Okay, any further discussions, Members, on the motion before you?
Having none. All in favor of the motion please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with nine "ayes."
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bills by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. We'll take a ... thank you very much, Director Goode. We'll
take a ten-minute recess, Members. . . . (gavel). .
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RECESS:
RECONVENE:

ITEM 62:

10:40 a.m.
10:57 a.m.

ADVERTISING INSIDE COUNTY TRANSIT BUSES

(CC 09-

338, CC 15-201, BF CR 10-16)

CHAIR HOKAMA: .. (gavel)...
Okay. We shall come back to order. This is the
continuation of the Budget Committee's meeting for January 26. We shall now move
to item 62 under the heading of Advertising Inside County Transit Buses. We do have
correspondence dated December 2, 2015, from Corporation Counsel, with a revised
bill for an ordinance amending Title 11, Maui County Code, relating to advertising
inside County transit buses. And this is to regulate and define advertising as a means
to generate income to benefit the transit system and not to create--again, I will repeat
not to create a public forum for the dissemination, debate, or discussion of public
issues. So this morning we have our directors. First I'll ask Budget Director Mr. Baz
if he has any comments he wish to share with the Committee.
MR. BAZ: No thank you, Mr. Chair. I don't have any opening comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. We have Transportation Director Medeiros here with
us this morning so we'll ask the Director if he has some comments he wishes to share
with us.
MR. MEDEIROS: No sir, I don't. I'm just here to answer any questions you may have.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for bringing this up.
This is something that I mean it's revenue, potential revenue generator. So hopefully
we can move this along. My only concern, Mr. Chair, is the comment and I
understand it completely where it's generate income to the benefit of the system and
not create a public forum for the dissemination, debate, or discussion of public issues
which I totally agree. The question I have is the legality on that as far as freedom of
speech if somebody's able to purchase an ad they should be able to say what they
want. Is that an issue? If not, I'm fine with it completely.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll ask Mr. Ueoka if he's able to respond to that question at this time.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. My understanding is I didn't draft the bill but there was a
memo along with it and it's pretty clear that certain types of speech may be regulated
and this bill is, was signed off, approved as to form and legality. So my understanding
is it's perfectly legitimate. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comment. Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you. That was the concern I had. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not right now. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And the big concern I have, you know, being a
revenue generation issue, at one time I remember the discussion and I was trying to
real quickly go through this and look for the potential of not only nonprofits but others
using it that had no generation of revenue but it would be more informational in
nature. And I was reading your letter real quick and I didn't see anything that
brought that up again. Is that still part of the plan? Because your predecessor had
brought that up and so I was wondering, Mr. Medeiros, is that still part of the overall
picture as far as advertising in our buses?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Councilmember, the way it's set up at this point is
priority space will be to the paid advertisers first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Paid advertiser, okay. So that's why this is basically
covering the paid advertisers -MR. MEDEIROS: Correct. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --not so much the non-profits or other groups that even for
us, the County, if we have information that we wanted to disseminate through the bus
system like bus fare changes, route changes, would we have access immediately for
that issue?
MR. MEDEIROS: Those sorts of signs we would keep some spaces open for informational
regarding the transit system.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MEDEIROS: So those would be available. It'd be outside, say nonprofits that wanted to
put things in there. If there is space, it's not taken up by advertising space then they
would be able to do that.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you for that clarification, Mr. Chair.
That was, you know, I know we had discussed that quite lengthy -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and had not come up with any final decision. But I think
at this point I would yield to the fact that what the Department is recommending I
would go for that for now. And maybe request that maybe in 24 months or in 2 years
a review of it. Because I think it's going to be very important that number one what's
put in, number two what kind of revenue we generate, and number three I think not
forgetting that some of the groups, this is their means of reaching those who they need
to reach; the less fortunate, the disabled who... and the underprivileged who use our
bus systems quite extensively. And so I would, you know, would not want that to be
left out of the equation, Mr. Chair. So thank you for letting me ask that question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your comment. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. I support the proposed bill.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so I guess this is mainly about the
paying person. But as in Mr. Victorino was mentioning the free which would be
nonprofits and governments, so we just ask a question are allowed to put I guess
meeting times to give word out to the community as a whole about a certain, because I
remember the whole bus issue and then the bus people were saying, you know, you
have a bus meeting and you didn't have any notation on the bus to tell us that we
should come and, you know, speak our piece about this bus situation. So can we the
County, is that allowed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say at this time, what will be allowed is what Council passes in
ordinance. So that will be our determination, what we will allow and not allow. But
your Chair's intent was to find revenues to continue to offset the subsidy because I'm
not happy with the subsidy level. I think riders need to pay more. I don't think it's
fair to just dump on the regular General Fund and general property ownership to just
pay for everything. If the ridership won't take some level of responsibility, I don't have,
you know; my thing is somebody's got to pay for it. And once that group starts
rebelling of paying for things we're going to have then real problems. And so I'm not in
favor of free anything in the buses.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright. Thank you very much, Chair. So this is
open to whale watching activities or activity desk that wants to advertise, time share
or...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: They can pay for it yeah, they can pay for it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If that's what we will permit. Yeah so as long as they pay, and again my
thing is finding ways to make this program work because again I'm not happy with the
level of the subsidy. I think it's unfair. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know I did notice during this last
golf tournament we had that we had a bus that had stopped at the Maui County bus
stop but it wasn't a Maui County bus and it had an outside advertisement. Don't we,
do we have any laws about that at this point? It had an advertisement about the golf
tournament that we had here. And I'm just curious, I'm assuming one of our buses
went down so it was the vendor's, another bus that they have and they happen to have
an outside advertisement. Is there anything first of all that prohibits outside
advertisement at this point on any kind of bus?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well ask Mr. Medeiros since he has some private sector experience if he is
knowledgeable and if not we'll ask Mr. Ueoka if he has a response from an ordinance
perspective.
MR. MEDEIROS: Through the Planning Department I believe there isn't, it's the outdoor,
some outdoor ordinance regarding equipment and unless it's been changed you are
unable to, you shouldn't, you're unable to advertise on a bus for something else other
than you own it. So in the case of let's say Coca-Cola, it's a Coca-Cola truck, they can
have Coca-Cola signs on it. But a Coca-Cola truck shouldn't have catamaran signs.
That's my understanding of the law unless it's been changed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. 'Cause that was a concern I had. I noticed it and
thought, wait a minute.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why don't we ask, let me ask Mr. Ueoka if he has something he could
share to your question, Mr. Couch. Mr. Ueoka, can you, do you have any response
you could share with Mr. Couch and the Members?
MR. UEOKA: Sorry, Chair. I'm not overly familiar with it. What Mr. Medeiros says does
sound correct and it might have to do with some sort of like billboard type of bill.
Yeah I believe, and we also have like that aerial advertising legislation also. So there's
probably something out there, I'm just, I'm not familiar with it. I'm sorry, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's all for now. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello, questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have no questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: In the December 2tC1 letter from Corp. Counsel it states that there's no
item in the proposed bill in Exhibit 1 prohibiting false or misleading advertising. Is
that an amendment that has been reflected in the bill? Or is ... oh, okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That's all I have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I think all of my questions have been answered.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any... Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very -CHAIR HOKAMA: Please.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --much Chair. I've had time to think. I may have missed it and I
apologize if I did. But, you know, have we any idea of how much revenue we're talking
about from this advertising? Is it significant?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have some preliminary but it depends on what we're going to permit, Ms.
Baisa. I'm looking at roughly at least $50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Fifty thousand possible?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It depends again on how we structure fees. You know if we go ... I think the
current consideration is $25 per space per month is the consideration. But again I
think we can consider higher amounts for that type of space. And my thing is we
know, we'll check with the sister counties if they are doing advertising, how they are
approaching the revenues.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'm just curious because I'm just wondering, you know, if it's a
big deal. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. No, I understand. Ms. Cochran, anything further?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know, I was.. .you were mentioning about the amount
and I thought I saw, I was just trying to sift through, something like 80, 184 or $85
per month and that would be signage in 13 buses I guess so that's a monthly rate
-
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from each advertiser I guess. So I was just trying to add all that up and then, you
know, what it would come out to. So something like what 2,200 per, if they wanted to
go for the all 12 months, advertising in all 13 buses so annually at about 2,200 times
however many vendors are interested in paying, something like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again I'm just looking at reducing any
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the amount that we've got to look at General Fund. Because the way
things are going, more than likely the Highway Fund cannot handle the demands
unless we increase revenues in Highway Fund which is Gas Tax. Two projects we just
considered, that's Highway Funds. MPO will be Highway Funds. Subsidy should be
coming from Highway Fund for the bus, not General Fund. So the impact on
transportation yes we've got to do improvement but at a pace where the community
can pay for it and deal with the debt load is my issue right now on how we're going to
pay for all of these things. Because you and I both know that's not even touching the
other big infrastructure components we've got to look at; the water, sewer
components.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I'm in the billions already in budgetary numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that's something this County it not at this time to me willing to pay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah and I appreciate your efforts in picking every, you
know, overturning every stone. And Chair, as you do, are familiar with, you know,
national issues, how is it the other municipalities are dealing with subsidy if at all?
Have you taken a look and gotten some ideas through other sister counties?
CHAIR HOKAMA: They're having the same challenges. The difference is a lot of them look at
mutual agreements within abutting sister counties. So you go to Minnesota it's
St. Paul, Minneapolis, two I mean they're two large big urban counties but even for
them they had to partner to make that transit work; two big counties had to agree to
make that transit work. We don't have that opportunity to ask a sister county 'cause
there's no abutting, there's always that channel of water between us. That would be
difficult for us and that's why for us expenses, level of subsidy is going to be extremely
high. We need to be smart. The system we will support and pay for. And the farther
we stretch it out, the more money you're going to need. And you're going to have fewer
returns. And so it's a financial decision down the road eventually on the nine of us on
where and how we're going to address those funds.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're not setting the rates here right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're going to do that...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, this is the enabling legislation on what we will allow to be charged
within County transit buses. It sets the new legislation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 'cause 25 is way too low in my opinion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But that's.. .we'll do that in budget then I guess?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll make the appropriate adjustments in the budget document.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Great. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Question, should this pass and follow through with
whatever is required would this be something that we're looking at the Department of
Transportation to solicit or is there a possibility of I guess having outside, to outsource
it? And does that have to be, do we deal with that later on? 'Cause I think on Oahu
it's City and County of Honolulu, if I'm not mistaken they outsource an entity to or
another company to go ahead and generate the advertisements in the bus. So I'm not
sure if that's something we would address now or later on after...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say if you have some comments, Ms. Crivello, we would be happy
to hear it now. I think the Director Medeiros would be open to hearing what we would
be supportive of if you have some thoughts on it. I don't have a problem with third
party if that comes to their Department benefit.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right, and it's just, you know, just thoughts that have just
come through my head right now and which is, you know, if we would consider this
opportunity then to outsource it to me would be something that makes sense instead
of overtaxing the existing employees or thinking of bringing in new -CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --employees which would be added cost. But that's just a
consideration, Director. Would that be something if this goes through that you would,
what would you prefer or whatever?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Yes, we would entertain going out to bid and getting a
private vendor to handle it. I think that's probably a better way to go about it. Let the
people that understand advertising do their job.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I think that makes sense, Chair, for some sort of
consideration -CHAIR HOKAMA: I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --in regards to this. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Just for the Committee's information again because of our
great Staff work, currently under Maui County Code Chapter 11.02.050 this is in
regards to advertising on exterior of County buses. So it says three things except as
provided under Subsection B, no advertising shall be allowed on the exterior of County
buses; two, any word, phrase, or logo identifying the Department bus contractor or
trade name of the County bus system may be placed on the exterior of the County
bus. So it's not a requirement. And finally, any word, letter, phrase, or number on
the exterior of a County bus that identifies route, origin, destination, fleet inventory
designation of the bus shall not be deemed advertising prohibited by the section. So
that is what is currently in the Code regarding exterior of the bus. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for that. While this bill is all about
interior, we may want to consider that at a later date. 'Cause I was just looking at for
instance Los Angeles, their exterior for a 4-week period is $500 to $8,500 a month
depending on the ad.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that's some big bucks.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And by the way their interior rates are $35 to $85 for a 4-week
period.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Good to have 10 million people yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Compared to our 150,000. Other questions, Members, regarding this? I
would like to push this out but if you folks have some hesitation or issues that you
would like us to work on, I'm happy to deal with those concerns before we send this to
Council.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, go ahead, Chair, I'd like to hear your recommendation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, thank you. I... and again Staff did pass out a signed off
copy of the bill for an ordinance, we did receive that so we've handed it out.
Corporation Counsel did sign off on the revised proposed bill for an ordinance. So on
that copy the Chair is recommending that we move this to Council the
recommendation for passage on first reading and be ordered to print A Bill for an
Ordinance Amending Tile 11, Maui County Code, Relating to Advertising Inside
County Transit Buses.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have motion made by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. We are
under discussion. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a technicality.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is this one file-able one or no?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let's see. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we file.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. So, Members, with no objections, all communications pertaining to
BF-62 shall be filed.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse, Mr. Chair. Can we allow Staff to make nonsubstantive changes?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, with no objections, to allow Committee Staff to make
nonsubstantive changes to the proposed bill for an ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that. Any further discussion on the motion before you,
Members? Having none, all in favor -COUNCILMEMBER OUZMAN: Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --of the motion please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no."
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Motion passes with nine [sic] "ayes." Thank you.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, and Victorino.
NOES:

Councilmember Guzman.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communications by C.R.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I think there was not a nine ayes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I thought I heard a no, but I apologize. Maybe I'm wrong.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any no vote on the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah. Chair, I was..., your litany on the call of the vote.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Prior to the discussion I was trying to grab your attention.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I'm sorry. I apologize Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I had one question. Yeah, that's no problem that's why I
voted no 'cause I -- 50 -
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --didn't have my question answered. But on the first portion
of the purpose and the intent, when it describes the display of the advertising, it says
interior and exterior. But moments ago when there was a discussion about exterior, is
there any language in here that specifically says that this is only for interior? Because
the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The title of the legislation is Advertising Inside County Transit Buses -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: County buses.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. So but then the purpose and the intent indicates the
interior or exterior.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, for your comment.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I believe the Section 11.01.010 was kind of the general
overarching for inside and outside of buses. So I think the intent purpose just wanted
to make it clear that that's the limiting language. I believe it's, you know, case law
type language, you know, so it's for interior and exterior limiting. And then
11.020.040, which is the section you're primarily amending through this bill, is only
for advertising inside buses, and there's another section of the Code that relates to
outside buses, but the purpose and intent is overarching to inside and outside, that's
why the amendment is there also just to make sure that language is in there in your
purpose and intent.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah -CHAIR HOKAMA: --any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --that's fine. I just wanted to make sure that the argument
later on for using purpose and intent not be used against the real intent of just using
it. . .applying advertising for interior. Okay, thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair will correct the vote. Upon notification of the Chair
it was eight "ayes," one "no," Mr. Guzman. So if we can correct the record please.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, can you recall the vote so I may vote again?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I ... you know what? Just so that we don't get questioned about the legality
of this...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, just to pass out of...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I'm happy to do it because, you know, if you wanna be on the
affirmative, so I will ask for a quick motion for reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Reconsideration.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So move, second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I have a motion and second to reconsider the previous vote made by
Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch. Discussion? All in favor of the motion please
say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Passes nine-zero.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, the previous question is now before you again. Members, any
additional questions? And again my apologizing for not recognizing any Member.
Having none, all in favor of the motion please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes now with nine "ayes."
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: FIRST READING of revised bill and FILING of
communications by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GIJZMAN: Thank you. Sorry.

ITEM 38(37): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(OFFICE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let's see, let me direct you to BF-38(37). We have a
correspondence dated January 19th of this year requesting consideration of a
resolution transferring funds from the Office of the Council, Council Services Program
from Category B to Category C in the amount of $20,000. So I know Mr. Baz sent this
to the Administration, if you have any comments, Mr. Baz, if you would share it now
please.
MR. BAZ: I apologize, Mr. Chair, what item are you on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thirty eighty, thirty seven, this is the Council's budget request.
MR. BAZ: Yeah actually, Mr. Chair, I have not reviewed this item. It did not go through my
office.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah this is a request to transfer money from
the Council Services B Account to the C Account to accommodate the Members' needs
for equipment to be brought into the Chamber and used to view our new Granicus
capacity to go paperless, and I've been following this meeting just on my iPad as
opposed to going through the binders. So the access for the Members going forward
will allow viewing of all the items that are in the binders now are also available on the
iLegislate app on iPad's and it allows us very easy access to all the documents that are
in the binders which will allow us over time to go paperless. The amount requested is
more than I anticipate needing but it allows for some flexibility if Members have
specific needs that they would like to address with respect to accessing Granicus.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. We also have Mr. Raatz, Members. If you have
a need to request him to respond to specific questions from you we'll be happy to ask
Mr. Raatz to join the Committee. So hearing from Mr. White I'll go down the line. Ms.
Crivello, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions. But I've been utilizing this new app or
whatever and I appreciate it. You know it's, it makes it much easier and being that I
go home on weekends I can just take the iPad home and review it over the weekend for
upcoming agendas. So it makes it easier because you've got just about everything in
here. So I appreciate OCS to upgrading our efforts to be better prepared I guess.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So you have the new kupuna iPad?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No I have the old kupuna iPad.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I just was wondering, you know, I know the Chair has the new kupuna
version for bigger fonts so I just was wondering.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, but I can appreciate something that my eye can focus
on so yeah-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --good job, Mr. White.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. I'm good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No.
- 54 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
January 26, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Utilized it so far and very much enjoy it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I'm good. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No further comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, your Chair is an old fuddy-duddy and I like a paper. And all I can
tell you is check out what you need for the upcoming budget session because the
Chair will be and Staff will be working with our binders and we're gonna keep the
same speed or faster. So practice with your iPad because we're not waiting. And then
the Chair will take a moment of the Chair's prerogative, someone who I consider a
supporter of Maui County just passed away and so I want us to take a few seconds of
silence in honor of State Senator Gil Kahele who just passed away at the age of 72. He
is from the Big Island of course and I think it's important we recognize our leaders
even if they come from a sister county 'cause Senator Kahele was a supporter of this
County's efforts. And so if we can just take a few moments please to honor the
gentleman from the Big Island, please.
(note: silence)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members. You know unfortunately the Senator just took ill
last week -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and we've already lost him so quickly. So it's a loss for the Big Island,
it's a loss for the State of Hawaii, and Maui County has lost a great champion. So our
condolences to the family of the Kahele ohana. With that, Members, thank you
Members. Let us move on. Let us move on to 38(3 1).
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You're not going to...
COUNCILMEMBERS: Vote.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, excuse me. We didn't do the vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You didn't vote, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sorry. Yeah, I was kinda -- 55 -
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --thrown off for a loop with the news of the Senator. So, Members, is there
any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If not all in favor of the motion...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: We haven't made...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, we...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We don't have a motion yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We don't?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we haven't had the motion yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You haven't made the motion yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for keeping me on track, Members. It's amazing -VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You got off on your...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --what can happen in a week, boy, with our people. So I am open to a
motion from the floor recommending transfer of $20,000 from Council Services
Category B to Category C. And I guess there is no filing of communications, so.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion made by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. Further
discussion, Members? My only thing is again as we . . .(inaudible). . . to budget let's
make sure we take care these little ABCs 'cause I thank Mr. Victorino. He's one of the
few that budgeted accordingly for C Account. So just something to think about,
Members, for your own budgetary needs of your specific offices, and for Council
Services let's make sure we take care Category C. All in favor of the motion, please say
"aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with nine "ayes."
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VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution by C.R.

ITEM 38(31): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(INCREASES IN SALARIES AND WAGES, AND FRINGE
BENEFITS FOR EMPLOYEES OF BARGAINING UNITS 02,
03, AND 04)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Let's take up the big boy, 38(31). This is
Amendments to the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. These are increases in Collective
Bargaining Units 2, 3, and 4 in salaries and wages and fringe benefits for employees.
We have, let's see one, two bills for an ordinances from the Administration and let's
see, Mr. Agsalog, are you joining us for this one, sir? If you would please join us with
the Budget Director, and Staff is passing out our summary sheet of the potential
impact to our funds as assisted with Budget Director Baz helping to ensure accuracy
to the numbers. Okay so with that, Mr. Baz, if you have some opening comments
before Director Agsalog.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members. Good morning. This is the collective
bargaining for Units 2, 3, and 4. They were going through negotiations and arbitration
during the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget deliberations so we didn't have numbers for you to
present. So during, actually right after the budget deliberations were complete the
union and employers did have a finalized agreement that presented the cost items to
this Committee in I believe it was August or September which the Committee already
approved. After that we reviewed the Department's budgets to see what the financial,
direct financial impact was of the salaries and the special costs of the special revenue
funds so that you can... and, Mr. Chair, thank you for your Committee Staff for
passing out. The direct impact on each program you can see is, was just handed out
as well so you can see it by program for the individual increases and how they relate
to the budget so you can see those items. Again Unit 2 is the supervisors of the Unit 1
people. This is the, a lot of the pipefitters and laborers and all that blue-collar typical
workers. Unit 3 are the clerks and for now ocean safety and some of the other
lifeguards and different things like that. And then Unit 4 is the supervisors for the
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Unit 3 individuals. So this is the total item of these three contracts, and we ask,
Chair, that you appropriate, the Council, the Committee approve these funds so that
the departments will have the funding available in their programs to be able to pay
these collective bargaining increases that... they're already paying it but just to make
sure that they have enough money toward the end of the year to pay it, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that, Mr. Baz. Director Agsalog, we are open to
hearing your comments please.
MR. AGSALOG: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and I'm here too in support with the Budget
Director's request, because we have certified along, sent a certification to the Mayor's
Office and Mayor's Office sent you a certification that the, from the funds that's are
affected on this. And again also I will be here to answer any question as it regards to
the fringe benefits area on the Department of Finance Countywide, Mr. Chair. Other
than that I'm here to answer the questions, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. We appreciate your presence here this morning with
us. Mr. White, any questions for either Director at this time regarding the Bargaining
Units 2, 3, and 4?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. My question would, I'm not sure you would have
the answer to it, but do you have an employee count for each of these units?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director Baz?
MR. BAZ: I don't, I can...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just a rough count, if you...
MR. BAZ: Yeah I wouldn't even venture to guess. I can probably look it up if you give me a
second. I can give a count of the total number of people that were affected by this
increase.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you don't mind, and, Chair, you can go to others for questions -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --while he looks it up. That's my only question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Before we, I move on to the next Councilor, is this an
accurate understanding of the Committee, for these bargaining units does all units
have the three things that adds to cost; across the board increases, step movement,
and one-time adjustments? Is that for all three bargaining units or just basically Unit
3?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I know that Unit 3 for Fiscal Year '17 has those three items. The Unit
2, let's see for Fiscal Year '16 which we're in right now they continue the step
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movement plan, they get a salary schedule increase of 0.3 percent or a 2 percent lump
sum payment for employees at their max step. So that's for Unit 2 for Fiscal Year '16.
Fiscal Year '17 they receive a 2 percent across-the-board increase in October and a 2
percent increase across-the-board increase in April. Excuse me, that's for Fiscal Year
'16 as well. And in Fiscal Year '17 they get a step and then October 1 they get another
2 percent across the board and April 1 they get another 2 percent across the board.
So that one's for Unit 2. Unit 3 for Fiscal Year '16 the employees get a step movement,
well they get placed on their existing step if they had no step movements in the past
and then the continuation on the step movement if they were eligible to receive a step,
$1,500 lump-sum payment for employees that are at their maximum step level. And
for Fiscal Year '17 they receive a step if they're eligible, a $1,200 lump-sum payment
for all employees, and on January 1 of 2017, so halfway through the fiscal year they
receive a 1.6 percent across-the-board increase. That was for Unit 3. Unit 4 Fiscal
Year '16 they get the step, they get moved to what their step is supposed to be and
continuation on step if they are supposed to be receiving it, $1,500 lump sum
payment for employees at the max step, and for Fiscal Year '16 step if they're eligible
$1,200 lump-sum payment and January 1 a 1.6 percent across-the-board raise. So
Unit 3 and Unit 4 are exactly the same. But those are the cost items that were
approved by the Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that's all within the requirements of the contract as we
understand it, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, those are straight out of the contract.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. After hearing that would it be possible for us to get
the annual increase for an average? You know the steps come at different times.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The across the board have significant increases at various times, and
then we have the one-time payments. And I would appreciate getting a chance to look
at what those, what is the impact on each individual or on the average employee in
each of those units. I know in the past we've gotten a little bit more of a breakdown
and I'm just interested in seeing the degree of the increase overall. Because I can't, we
don't have the base off of which to work, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. It looks like the average increases are very minimal per
employee. A Secretary I who was getting 2,926 a month is now getting 3,165 a month
so it's a couple hundred dollars. The...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Which unit was the one that had the 2 percent increase? 'Cause it
sounded like it was every six months.
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MR. BAZ: That's for Fiscal Year '17 yeah. So you'll see that in the upcoming...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sothis is just the cost for FY '16?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sixteen.
MR. BAZ: That's correct. That's an amendment to this...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What I'm interested in is establishing what those increases amount to
over, you know, over both fiscal years.
MR. BAZ: In the cost items -CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me see if we have that.
MR. BAZ: --let's see, for fiscal year... for Unit 2 it's, when they do the collective bargaining
cost item resolution they get numbers from the State related to current employees in
our system and additional costs of the implementation of the award of the collective
bargaining increases. And so that can include increases in EUTF costs and other
things that are not necessarily direct pay increases.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: And so for Unit 2 the additional cost was 288,743 for Fiscal Year '16, and for
Fiscal Year '17 is 448,344.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But this sheet shows a figure of only 94,000.
MR. BAZ: Yeah because it's all the additional costs on there, not just the pay increases. So
there's, you know, they increased the fringe benefit cost as well.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. I'm uncomfortable voting on something that I don't have a good
understanding of. And so...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will make copies. July 7, 2015 Budget Committee report when we took
action on the original agreements we did have attached to the report a summary sheet
of all cost items for both 2016 and 2017 Budget years from the Administration as their
proposed anticipation of increased costs, and for us the new effective issue that we've
got to deal with is April 1, 2016 which is as I understand for Unit 2, 2 percent across
the board as the Director stated including those employees formally on step L5 and
employees not administratively assigned to the salary schedule. So that's Unit 2, Unit
3 and 4 effective July 1 of this year. This is for Unit 4, Members, employees who are
eligible for step movements during the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 shall
receive step movements on their step movement dates. And employees who were
employed as of June 30, 2016 which has not occurred yet shall receive a one-time
lump-sum payment equivalent to $1,200. Employees who are less than full-time shall
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receive a prorated amount. And then for Unit 3 effective July 1, 2016 they have the
same language as the previous bargaining unit which is the $1,200 one-time
lump-sum payment equivalent. And so I can make copies of this for the Committee. If
this is what you folks need we'll do that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: If you don't mind, Chair, I would appreciate that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no. If this helps you folks make a decision I'm very happy to
provide you with the documents.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll do that. Yes, Ms. Baisa? I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Chair, I have a question.
While we are debating or deliberating on what we're going to do with this do the people
that are supposed to get the adjustments get them or do they wait and they don't get
them until we approve this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Member Baisa, yeah they've already received these raises.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay I just wanted to be sure that they weren't waiting for us to
make up our mind.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. No, the Council action on approving the cost items, the previous action that
the Committee report he was reading from is what authorized the raises to be
implemented.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Okay. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So with Ms. Baisa's question -CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so I, so that I'm correct that what action we're taking
right now is to make sure the various departments that are, these bargaining units are
a part of will not be short of money by the end of this fiscal year due to these raises?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Correct.
MR. BAZ: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So no matter what we do we've got to pay them. Now it's a
matter of just putting the money in there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The contract agreements you are correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We have come up with already.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We are obligated by contract, yeah.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I'm glad for that -CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --clarification. I'm sorry. Go ahead, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: This covers approximately 725 employees, Chair White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Agsalog, you have anything you wish to share at this time?
MR. AGSALOG: No, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So any questions regarding, you know; we are fulfilling our
responsibility on the terms of a executed collective bargaining agreements. And then
we can have our discussion later on how well we negotiate or don't.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yes. Recommendation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, any further questions on this, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Recommendation?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Recommendation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will tell you since your Chair did receive, I'm not going to bring up
repricing. I'm following what I'm obligated to by contract and I would recommend to
those that have some concerns about that subject to take it up with your union
because that's the appropriate party that should be dealing with this issue at the
negotiation table. And if I were them, being due-paying union members, I think the
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union better shape up or deal with two options the employees have. They can go to
HPERB or Circuit Court for relief. But this is not the appropriate arena. We do not
negotiate. I wish we could. I would love to negotiate. So, stating that, that's the end
of that discussion. I am entertaining a motion for move to Council, recommending to
passage on first reading be ordered to print two bills for an ordinances; one amending
Appendix A of the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget for the County of Maui as it pertains to
Part II, Special Purpose Revenues - Schedule of Revolving Special Funds for the Fiscal
Year 2016, Plan, Review, Permit Processing, and Inspection Revolving Fund. And
second, A Bill for an Ordinance Amending the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget for the County
of Maui as it Pertains to Estimated Revenues; Department of Environmental
Management, Department of Finance, Department of Liquor control, Department of
Parks and Recreation, Department of Public Works, Department of Water Supply;
Total Operating Appropriations; and Total Appropriations.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion by Mr. White, seconded by Mr. Victorino. The motion
would also include to allow Staff to make nonsubstantive changes to the proposed
ordinances for form and legality. Further discussion, Members? Having none, all in
favor of the motion please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with nine "ayes."
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill and FIRST READING of revised
bill by C.R.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members. Thank you very much, Director Agsalog. We
appreciate your assistance.
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ITEM 38(26): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(GRANT TO MAUI FAMILY LIFE CENTER; GRANT TO KA
HALE A KE OLA; ESTABLISHING A HOMELESS PROGRAMS
DIVISION; AND ACQUISITION OF SPACEMAX SHELTER
UNITS)
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. We got one last one. I know we're burning sunlight so we'll do
what we can and then we'll decide what to do with the balance. So let me direct you to
BF 38(26) where under this component we have for consideration one, two, three bills
for an ordinances. One is, the first one is as it pertains to Department of Housing and
Human Concerns, Maui Family Life Center, Ka Hale a Ke Ola. In it, it is
recommending a $1.134 million consideration of which 378 would go to Maui Family
Life Centers and 756 to Ka Hale A Ke Ola. The second bill is as it pertains to the
Department of Housing and Human Concerns. There is a request for three positions
to establish a Homeless Programs Division. And the third bill for an ordinance is,
amend the current year's budget by increasing Bond/Lapsed Bond by 990,000 for
acquisition of SpaceMax shelters. And another ordinance as it relates to the issuance
of General Obligation Bonds to amend the 2016 budget in the amount of $990,000.
And as I've posted we will not take action today. With that we have first, Mr. Baz, any
opening comments before we ask Director Reimann for hers?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. No I think you read those appropriately and we'll defer to
Ms. Reimann's opening remarks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Director, welcome, we're open to your opening
comments please.
MS. REIMANN: Aloha, welcome. Thank you, Chair, Members of the County Council. As
reported previously, Maui's ratio of homeless to population is higher than any other
island. Based on last year's PIT count or point-in-time count, Maui's homeless is 0.7
of our population, 0.7 percent. The City and County of Honolulu is .5 and the State as
a whole is at .6. However, it's really important to note that our service providers,
those who are out in the field every day dealing with the situation estimate that our
homeless count is actually three times the PIT count which would increase our Maui's
ratio to 1.8 percent. Each week my office receives several calls from concerned
citizens reporting on homeless campsites, lighting fires, fights, blaring music, or just
plain concern about people living outdoors and exposed to the elements. The faces of
many of our beaches have changed from family-friendly fishing areas to scary places
where people are really afraid. I also want to point out that our youth homelessness is
on the rise nationwide. And sadly Maui's no different. Last month I rode along with A
Cup of Cold Water, we drove around the Kahului-Wailuku area giving away food,
clothes, et cetera. In addition to seeing primarily local people out there I was quite
surprised to see young people. Something needs to be done. These are our people,
Maui's most vulnerable population and it's a huge concern to us which takes me to
the reason we're here today. The proposed budget amendments before you represent
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just the first step in a multipronged approach to deal with our homeless situation. We
asked for your consideration for our Phase I or Puuhonua Plan which basically will
quickly get people off the streets. The plan is to build sanctuaries that can be quickly
deployed and used in areas where there's adequate support services. Our budget
amendment includes funds to purchase 12 SpaceMax and 8...9 Exo shelters, funds to
provide operational funding for service providers and lastly funding to create a new
Homeless Division. Maui needs an experienced and dedicated staff to deal with the
complexities of the homeless issues, a staff to coordinate all homeless efforts,
spearhead the coordinated entry process, investigate and maximize State and Federal
funding options and bring together the myriad of service providers so that we can
develop an efficient, collaborative, and streamlined approach. Our plan is not just a
handout but is based on a proven supportive housing model that helps people get
back on their feet and move out of shelters and on with their lives. Municipalities in
the mainland have dedicated homeless programs. However, there are none on any of
our sister counties. Maui has a very unique opportunity here to take the lead on such
a highly and important topic. Homelessness is very complex as we mentioned before
with no one-size-fits-all fix. The numbers are growing. They are becoming more
visible and some are becoming increasingly aggressive. There are many service
providers that deal with our homeless population on Maui. Some run shelters, others
substance abuse programs, some have in-house, others have outpatient services and
the list goes on. These service providers are out in the field doing what they do best in
their specialty areas. This is an opportunity to have Maui County take the lead in the
State to coordinate our homeless issues. And lastly, I'd just like to point out a friendly
reminder that the Governor's emergency proclamation was extended back in
December 25 and they've included Maui, the deployment of these shelters for Maui
County which basically means that the Governor's proclamation includes exemption
from certain things like procurement and permitting and all of that. So what that
means is by February 25 which is the deadline when the proclamation expires is that
we would need to have a plan in place. We're here to answer any of your questions
and thank you for having us here today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Deputy, thank you for joining us. Do you have anything you
wish to share with the Members at this time? Deputy Director?
MS. SHISHIDO: Jan Shishido, Deputy Director, Housing and Human Concerns. Just Happy
New Year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here.
MS. SHISHIDO: I think Director Reimann said it all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for being here. Part of the discussion we wanted to have as
part of the legislation that was brought up is this Committee has done some research
and since 2011, Members, I can tell you that you have been very responsible
legislators and I only went back to 2011. We could have gone longer but for me that
was good enough to get a sense of what this County has been doing regarding this
subject compared to our sister counties. So from 2011, Statewide the counties put up
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$7.9 million for homeless programs of which Honolulu County put up $4.4 million,
Maui County put up 3.4, Hawaii County put up 60,000, and Kauai County put up 0.
So 2012 only 2 counties put up monies as we can through our checking of the county
budgets and Honolulu put up 4.4 and Maui put up $3.8 million. Two thousand
thirteen Hawaii added 225,000, we came up with 3.7, Honolulu went to $5 million.
Two thousand fourteen Hawaii County finally anted up to 2.4, Kauai 0, Maui 3.955
million, and Honolulu 5.7. Two thousand fifteen Kauai anted up 89,000, Big Island
150, Maui County 3.98 million and this is where Honolulu made a big commitment,
they went to 35.5 million. Two thousand sixteen Kauai we couldn't find anything in
the current budget, Big Island only did 222, with the forgiveness of the loan Maui
County has anted up for this year $8.2 million, Honolulu has put up 46.4 million as
part of the Council and Mayor Caldwell's efforts. So over 6 years the Statewide, 131.9
million has been expended by the counties of which 101.6 is City and County of
Honolulu. Kauai we show and, you know, I hope I'm wrong but we only show 89,000
as directed appropriations. Big Island has anted up $3.1 million and this County has
anted up $27.1 million. So the question should be asked, what has we, what have we
done with $27 million worth of support for this program? And that is what we ask the
Department this morning. Tell us how we have utilized $27.1 million over the last
2011 to now and why is the situation the way it is with the amount of millions we have
put toward this issue?
MS. SHISHIDO: Chair, thank you and thank you for that question. And it is a good
question, and I think if you minus some of the forgiveness or some of the other loans
that have gone out we're looking at over a period of 1, 2, 3, 4, 5...6 years divided by
the let's say $20 million it's about 6, what is that 3 million a year. We're covering and
we're taking care of our shelters, our agencies who need monies for their operations as
well as a lot of the homeless issues that have come up which is the transitional
housing and their... and the operations consist of outreach into the community and we
have very little if not and I wish we could have more outreach into the community
when it comes to homeless. We also provide case managers, or the agencies provide
case managers that really keep a watch and keep attune of all of what's going on with
their clients. And if it wasn't for all of that done, I think it would be even a greater
outrage out there. I'm sure, I feel like there's so much more to do and so much more
to give our agencies as well as our community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment, Deputy Director. We appreciate that. Let
me tell you my island is not happy with the amount of money we've appropriated and
the results we have gotten. I've got my ears bent every weekend I'm home about this
and other social issues we are all facing in this County. So I'll ask the Members 'cause
again we're looking at almost $4 million a year which is not small money compared to
the other counties. I think we've tried to do a good job as best we can. So the
question comes maybe we need to redirect where we put money if we're not satisfied
with the current outcomes. But I'll start with Ms. Crivello, you're our Chair for the
Human Concerns Housing component so if you have questions we are happy to hear
them.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: There's quite a bit of this for us to address, Chair. But
thank you for bringing this forward. And at this point, you know, the 27.1 million that
Maui County within the last 6 years this is of concern, I recognize that. But my
question is, if, Department, have you, or do you have numbers that you've received
from service providers as to what's the estimated amount of homeless, of the homeless
population that we show?
MS. REIMANN: So based on last year's PIT count our homeless count is 1,137 as previously
mentioned. But as I said the service providers estimate that it's actually 3 times so
estimate it more like at 3,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MS. REIMANN: Does that answer your question, Councilmember Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: If that's the information you have. And the other question
you know, it's Honolulu has reached a crisis by not paying attention. We've reached a
crisis that we want to I guess address and do something, and we're, I think every
county and throughout the State we're being very reactionary. And I think for one
thing in addressing Mr. Hokama's, you know, analysis of all the dollars, does the
Department work with the different service providers to see if the actual objectives
have been met and or have not been met? I think that's a question that we're going to
need in respond to this. I see the need and, but I also hear the concerns that's coming
from our Chair. And I also feel that if we don't address it today it's going to be worse
down the road and it's sad that we're in this situation but this is what we're at. The
other question I have in regards to part of this bill is to have a, your request to have a
separate Homeless Department as well as personnel. And I don't know if there's been
conversations or proposals coming from the Administration and from your
Department. You know how much of a stickler we are to establish new employees and
the liabilities that come with it. If we look at trying to address it today and I'm just
throwing this out because I have no clue, I understand there are executive assistants
that comes from the Administration, are there possibilities that they may be assigned
to at least have oversight for at least now if this would go? And, you know, and
because if you do have employees, it's not going to happen right away. It's going to
take a long time the way the Department of Personnel works and through that
process. So and it sounds as though your Department is overtaxed already with the
work that they have to do. So is there some sort of consideration if you don't get
approval for the personnel, what's plan B?
MS. REIMANN: Thank you, Councilmember Crivello. And first I'd like to address your first
question which is do we work with our service providers. The answer, the short
answer is yes. We work with them quite closely and we are active members of the
Maui Homeless Alliance which are all of the service providers plus more. We are in
constant contact with them on a daily basis. But I'd also like to point out that, you
know, this homeless situation is really closely tied into our pent up housing demand.
You know there are a lot of people out there that are in rentals that, you know, are
waiting for their homes. And once those people can move up in to homes and once we
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can get, you know, more housing built that will free up more people to move from
shelters into rentals and that'll increase our ability to bring in more homeless people
into our shelters. So it's kind of all tied together. In regards to the personnel issue,
it's my understanding that the Administration's EAs are all quite busy doing their
tasks. I can't speak on behalf of the upstairs but that's our understanding. And you
are absolutely correct and thank you for acknowledging that the DHHC is very busy
and quite full with our responsibilities now.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair, can I, may I ask another question? And then we can
pass it on. So you mentioned about residents awaiting rentals or what have you.
Your HUD voucher program, have we utilized it to the fullest or have we returned
monies back to the HUD's or, you know, the amount of the vouchers? And I guess
first answer that question. Have we applied it to the fullest and if we haven't, what
seems to be the problem?
MS. REIMANN: Thank you once again. So the HUD voucher program, you know, we're
allotted a certain amount from the Federal government each year and last year we did
not use about a million of it and that's because people who have vouchers, you know,
we have people with vouchers out there searching for homes but they are unable to
obtain housing. So that's of no, you know, fault to our Department but it's just kind
of the situation that we're in right now in Maui County with the lack of housing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRWELLO: I'll come back with some questions. I'll come back, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Members, we're going, I'm going to finish this round but I would ask
each Member to please focus the question because I want you to have enough time for
a break prior to Mr. Guzman's Committee meeting that will start at 1:30. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Can I ask a question of you? Can I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You've got some really good research. Is there a way that we
can break that down and if you could pass that out to everybody just so we could see
what goes to where?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we'll, my information is public so we'll hand it out to the Members.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Great.
CHAIR HOKAMA: 'Cause again we took this from the counties' adopted budgets.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So this is all public information.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I have as Ms. Crivello has, I have a ton questions but I'll just be
concise just for this one round. Mister, the Chair, gave us about a $27 million
number, $27.1 million and, you know, there's argument on the loan thing. Of that
$27 million that the Chair brought up, how many people are we helping with that
number? And how many more would not be helped if we didn't have, spend that
much?
MS. SHISHIDO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Shishido?
MS. SHISHIDO: Thank you. I think I need to go back to Councilmember Crivello's question
in regards to how do we know and what is the number. So we do have quarterly
reports that come out and then a final report from each of the agencies. And for your,
for you, Councilmember Couch, I would have to go back and total all of that. So I can
get that for you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's an important number, you know, it's basically how
much does it cost per person to handle the people that we are handling now. Thank
you. Thank you, Chair. I've got plenty, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. I'll let the other Members ask before I say what I plan to do.
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, and thank you, Department, for being
here. Well I like your one memo asking about how they're going to offset the new
services as to not increase burden on the County taxpayers and I really haven't seen a
direct answer to that question. So that would be one I'd like to get more detail on.
But focusing on the item itself, Department is asking for 121 and some odd dollars for
this new Homeless Program Division, also 660 for SpaceMax shelters along with 990
for SpaceMax shelters? So there's two asks for these shelters.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that what we're looking at? Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. The second amendment was meant to replace the first amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MR. BAZ: So it's not 660 and 990. It's just 990.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, got it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it's, okay, so scratch the 660, now it's a total of 990
for... is it stating how many at all? No?
MR. BAZ: I believe it was 18.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Eighteen round about, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that we have as the next, the last item on the agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh sorry, oh that's the Exo's.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, no, no, no, I mean it's part of this -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's kind of together yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --item also so. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And I love your opening comment, Chair, in regards
to the 27.1 mil spent in the past years and what has it gone to. What I'd like to see
and I understand numbers are really good and all that but what is the root of what's
growing the numbers I think is really key. Because in Lahaina it's growing daily and,
yeah, I've said this many years back where I was getting calls from homeless
complaining about other homeless, like where do they come from and I'm here and
now every day I see five, six other people I don't recognize on the streets too with me.
And it's like what? Where... and that's still occurring, you know, and I have, you
know, family, classmates, whoever, people I know very real close ties to who are
unfortunate at this time. And they're out there in the fields and wherever on the
streams cleaning up because that's where they need to live.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And it's not a, it's a scary situation for them to live in these
conditions and it's not right. And they have their services they can go to but it's just
not enough. You know it's just not enough to get them back on their feet and back as
productive members of the society with a roof over their head and on and on the
situation goes. So I'd like to see what is the root. Then the stories about people being
shipped in here because of our wonderful weather and the one-way tickets and things
of that nature. I have heard but I don't, you know, that's just kind of where it just
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goes around and around well so and so said, and someone said and yeah for sure it is
and I, you know, where's that study or whatever. So there's, you know, for me, Chair,
we need to nip it in the bud and get to the root of what's causing this. And I know it's
a collective, it's a big a lot of things, you know, contribute to this. But where can we,
as Council and Department make a dent and make a difference?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well I can tell you this is not just a Maui issue. It is not a Hawaii issue.
This is a national issue regarding homelessness and the feeling of despair by general
members of the society. So you bring up a good point. But I can tell you for Lanai
what the person that made the media came from Louisiana. And so again it wasn't
even our own. And so I can gladly say that person no longer is on Lanai.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But thank you for bringing this up for discussion, Chair. I
know there's no legislative action taken here today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you for scheduling
this. I think this is a matter of big urgency and I really would like to see us spend
some extra time on getting it solved. You know it's not kind of cool when you watch
the national news and you read Facebook and we're right there among the worst
problems in the country. That doesn't look very good for us. That's not Maui. Maui
County doesn't operate that way. We always are better. And so, you know, I want us
to spend whatever time we need to do to get this done and thank you. You know when
we talk about the problem, one of the things we haven't really addressed here is the
idea that the numbers are staggering but we are not taking into consideration the
hidden homeless. And those hidden homeless are people that are -CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for mentioning that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --living in their parent's houses or with aunty and uncle or 12
people in one house. I see it everywhere. Everybody I talk to has this problem. People
are coming home and it just causes all kinds of problems. So, you know, when we
look at the numbers let's not forget that there's a whole bunch of people that are not
in those numbers. And these kind people are hard to count because they hide.
They're like illegal immigrants. They're hidden the bushes somewhere; they don't
come out. So I think our numbers are very conservative. The other thing is I would
like to ask, again in a previous meeting I made a suggestion and I guess it's been gone
to the wayside but, you know, we're concerned about getting units that are available
for Section 8 vouchers, and what I hear and myself are concerned about because it
happens all around me with the rentals that I live near is the landlords are reluctant
to rent to Section 8 people because of the damage. And we suggested that we might
want to look at a cheaper way which would be getting insurance to help these
landlords so that they would be insured and if the people come in and mess up their
houses that they can recover. Because there's no point in taking a few thousand
dollars in rent and spending $50,000 in repairs. You just cannot make it. So I really
want us to fasten on that idea and find out what would it cost for us to spend some
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money and insure some of these landlords so that they would be willing to open up the
houses. 'Cause I think that's a, the pool is there, but they're empty. I know empty
houses but they don't want to rent. Another thing is in regards to the how do we solve
this problem. You know we have programs that work. I'm very, very familiar with
some of them having operated them. And for me I think the rental assistance program
that we do which is not Section 8, but we, agencies like MEO does it, I know Women
Helping Women does it, I think Family Life Center does it. And they help families that
are homeless or about to be homeless for a short period of time but they enroll them in
a case management program where they have to go out and get job skills, do resumes,
apply for jobs so that they can have help for a while, diminishing help as time goes on
and they get a job and they get benefits. But it is successful and when we do our
budget hearings, Chair, we hear it over and over, and over. People come and testify
how rental assistance made them independent. And so I think we need to look at
those kinds of programs which leads me to one of the issues today and that is the
staffing. You know, I know that we hate to spend money on staffing and my initial
reaction to the proposal for staffing was oh no. But I know that the people that
oversee grants and do these things, we don't have enough people to take care of all
this. So maybe some LTAs or temporary people to just go out and get us through this
crisis might be helpful. So I'm open to discussing that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. That was great, your list. Thank you.
Mr. Carroll, any thoughts, questions, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Councilmember Balsa covered a lot of the
things that I think all of us were thinking about. We've talked about so many different
aspects of being homeless and how we can try to solve the problem. Nobody's going to
be completely happy with anything we come up with but anything we do come up with
that we can get the funding for, that we can implement will make it better. And I
would hope that today we can look at it as the start. It's unrealistic to think that what
we're going to do today is going to solve all the problems. But it will help a lot of
people and it will make it better. And if we continue on like that maybe we can solve
all the problems. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your thoughts. Mr. Victorino, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, and my colleagues have most eloquently
addressed many of the issues that we're discussing and some of these issues that are,
you know, a part of this problem which this County has been and I say it very, very
poignantly, negligible in building housing in any manner. We've averaged what, 200
to 300 homes, units per year for the last 4 or 5 years which is really appalling when
you're talking about how big and fast we're growing. So the homeless issue is just not
what we see as as mentioned by Ms. Baisa, it's all that hidden homeless people that
are living with family and friends and others trying to. I was once at a house where
there was nine families living in that one house. They had 11 bedrooms, 7 baths, and
5 kitchens, 1 house. And if you need to go -CHAIR HOKAMA: Sound like one hotel.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you know... pardon me, sir?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It sounds like a hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah well I would like to say these families, and again some
of these families are going to be adversely affected with the shutdown of HC&S also
'cause they're the same people and there are four or five employees that live in that
one household, household. And that's very, you know, it's sobering to see what's
going to happen. If you think things are bad now, a year from today, and whoever's
going to be sitting here may be talking about even worse situations in what's occurring
out there. Makena is shutting down, that's 300 people that are not going to have jobs
in June. There's a lot on the horizon that hurts us right now. And yet we can't even
deal with what we have right in front of us. I don't want to pontificate too late, I know
people have to eat lunch. There's got to be a lot more work done on this but I think
this is a step in the right direction. I think the Big Island and others are recognizing
the fact and you saw it on TV, they're looking at these kinds of micro units. I think
we're going to be talking about that a little bit later. There's got to be other issues,
other ways of solving this problem. But until we build inventory we cannot solve the
problem. And we have to build affordable rentals and units so that our working
people can live and raise and play on Maui County, no matter which island. Whether
it's your island, Mr. Chair, on Lanai, Molokai, or Maui, it doesn't make a difference.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know I appreciate the numbers you shared
with us earlier. And I hope the Department will come back to us with an evaluation of
where the money is being spent and how it's being spent and how we may be able to
add to that in a responsible way. And I think it's clear to me that the County of Maui
is certainly putting forth significantly more than the other two neighbor islands and
probably a larger portion of our budget than Oahu is spending as a portion of their
budget. And similarly I would like to have a comparison of how much we're spending
per capita of estimated homeless versus Oahu, and maybe the Department can look
into ways in which the City and County of Honolulu is spending their funds as
opposed to how we're spending ours. It's clearly a problem that we need to address
and I appreciate the Administration bringing this forward. And we do need to move
but we do need to move in a fiscally responsible and caring and compassionate way.
So I appreciate you bringing this forward. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. The Chair will ask the Members if you have additional
questions you want us to seek responses for please let the Chair or the Staff know.
We are happy to forward those requests 'cause I plan to defer this items and schedule
it for the next meeting since we need to continue this discussion. The Chair will also
let you know that as always the Chair funds core departmental needs as determined
by Charter as first priority and then all others wait in line for consideration. But as
Councilors, we are required to take care Charter-mandated requirements first,
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including debt. So saying that, I am open to questions to forward and receiving those
responses so we can get another posting of this subject and have the Department
come back with some additional information for us as well as we can get additional
information how our sister counties are dealing with their unique situations also.
Anything else, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just a quick question. Are you anticipating scheduling it for
action because we're, I don't know if we have-CHAIR HOKAMA: If I'm satisfied -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --if this in consideration...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --with the responses coming from those that are being requested to
respond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, if they're not satisfactory I'm not going to ask for a decision before we
get the right information.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm just curious if we have a deadline because of the
proclamation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The deadline doesn't concern me because I am in to procurement and
transparency and I want to know who is going to get what contracts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any questions? Okay. With no objection, this item will be
deferred, Members.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

ITEM 38(30): AMENDMENTS TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET
(ACQUISITION OF EXO SLEEPER 4 SHELTERS)
CHAIR HOKAMA: The next item, Members, will be deferred.
ACTION: DEFER, NO DISCUSSION

ITEM 62:

ADVERTISING INSIDE COUNTY TRANSIT BUSES
338, CC 15-201, BF CR 10-16)
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Let me please bring you back to BF-62. I forgot to ask you for a
consideration. So on BF-62 I would entertain a motion to file County... Committee
Report 10-16 as it relates to BF-62.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Second.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I have a motion and second to BF-62 to just file. I need to file a, one of the
reports that I was, erred in the original motion on the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, you didn't name them?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I didn't ask for the filing of the communication so that's what I'm
asking for now as it relates just the filing of the communication as it relates to BF-62.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We already did.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't know. Staff said we needed to do that again so I just trying to cover
our bases, Members. So we have a motion and a second. Any further discussion?
Having none, all in favor of the motion, please say "aye."
COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oppose say "no." Motion passes with eight "ayes," one excused
Mr. Guzman.
VOTE: AYES: Chair Hokama, Vice-Chair White, and
Councilmembers Baisa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, and Victorino.
NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Guzman.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

FILING of Committee Report 10-16.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: All other items left on the agenda deferred to the next meeting, and again,
Members, we are open to any questions and requests for information on those items.
Okay. With no further business, we are adjourned. ... (gavel)...

ADJOURN: 12:27 p.m.

APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min: 160 126:mt

Transcribed by: Marie Tesoro
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I, Marie Tesoro, hereby certify that the foregoing represents to the best of my
ability, a true and correct transcript of the proceedings. I further certify that I am not in any
way concerned with the cause.
DATED the 22nd of February 2016, in Wailuku, Hawaii

Marie Tesoro
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